
Ray Bagshaw 
Mavor 

Ben Pierce 
Council Member 

Susan Fortini 
Council Member 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
Regular Meeting 

City Hall- Council Chamber 
405 Larue Avenue, Edgewood, Florida 

Tuesday, February 19, 2019 
6:30p.m. 

John Dowless 
Council President 

Lee Chotas 
Council Member 

Richard Alan Horn 
Council Member 

WELCOME! We are very glad you have joined us for today's Council meeting. If you are not on the agenda, 
please complete an appearance form and hand it to the City Clerk. When you are recognized, state your 
name and address. The Council is pleased to hear relevant comments; however a five-minute limit has been 
set by Council. Large groups are asked to name a spokesperson. Robert's Rules of Order guide the conduct 
of the meeting. PLEASE SILENCE ALL CELLULAR PHONES AND PAGERS DURING THE MEETING. " THANK 
YOU" for participating in your City Government. 

I A. CALL TO ORDER 

I B. INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

I c. ROLL CALL & DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 

I D. PRESENTATION 

I . Police Chief John Freeburg 

I E. CONSENT AGENDA 

I. Review and Approval of Minutes 

• (Pgs. 1-5) January 15, 2019 Minutes 

(Items on the consent agenda are defined as routine in nature, therefore, do not warrant detailed 
d iscussion or individual action by the Council. A ny member of the Council may remove any item from 
the consent agenda simply by verbal request prior to consideration of the co11sent agenda. The removed 
item(s) are moved to the end of New Business f or discussion and consideration.) 

I F. ORDINANCES 

None. 



Regular Council Meeting February 19, 2019 Page 2 

1. (Pgs. 6-29) ORDI 'A 'C E: 2018-13 - AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY OF 
EDGEWOOD AMENDING THE CITY OF EDGEWOOD CODE OF ORDfNA CES 
CHAPTER 106 TO MAKE MODIFICATIONS TO BRfNG THE REGU LATI0 1 S INTO 
AGREEMENT WITH TH E MOST CURRENT FEMA-APPROVED, CODE-COM PANI0 1 
FLOODPLAIN MANAGEM ENT ORDINANCE FOR FLORJDA COMMUN ITIES; TO 
ADOPT NEW FLOOD HAZA RD MA PS; PROV IDING FOR SEVERAB ILITY; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTI VE DATE. 

2. (Pgs. 30-31) ORDINANCE 201 8-16 - A ORDINANCE OF TH E CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF EDGEWOOD, FLORJDA, ADOPTING THE 20 I8120I9 FI VE YEA R 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM ANNUAL UPDATE; PROVIDING FOR 
LEG ISLATIVE FfN DINGS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 
EXCLUSIO FROM CODI FICATIO! ; A 1D PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

I H. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

1. (Pgs. 32-33). Pla1ming & Zoning Board Appointment/Reappointent - Mayor Bagshaw 
a . Recommendation/ Approval for appointment of Ryan Santurri 
b. Recommendation/ Approval for re-appo intment of David Gragg 

I I. NEW BUSINESS 

None. 

I J . GENERAL INFORJ."VIATION (No action required) 

I K. CITIZEN C OMMENT S 

I L. BOARDS & C OMMITTEES 

~ 

1. (Pgs. 34-68) ·waterfront, 4201 S. Ora nge Avenue- Variance R equest 

I M . STAFF REPORTS 

Ci ty Attorney Smith: 

Po lice Chief F reeburg : 

• (Pgs. 69-70) Monthly Report 

City Clerk Meei{S: 

I N . MAYOR & COUNCIL REPORTS 

• Mayo r Bagshaw 



--- ----------------, 

Regular Council Meeting February 19,2019 Page 3 

• Council President Dowless 

a. (Pg. 71-78) Orlando Urban Area FY 2023/24-2039/40 Prioritized Project List (Draft) 

• Council Member Chotas 

• Council Member Fmiini 

• Councillllcmbcr Horn 

• Councillllembcr Pierce 

[-0. ADJOURc'\'l\IENT 

UPCOJ\ITNG lllEETL'\'GS: 

Monday, March II, 2019 ........................................ Planning & Zoning 1\!eeting (6:30p.m.) 
Tuesday, March 19, 20 19 ........................................ Regular City Counci !Meeting (6:30p.m.) 

UPCOJ\Hl\'G EVENTS 

Friday, March 15,2019 ...................................... Edge\\ood Eats (3'd Friday Food Truck) 

You are welcome to attend and express your opinion. Please be advised that Section 286.0105, Florida 
Statutes state that if you decide to appeal a decision made with respect to any matter, you will need a record 
of the proceedings and may need to ensure that a verbatim record is made. In accordance with the American 
Disabilities Act (ADA), if any person with a disability as defined by the ADA needs special accommodation to 
participate in this proceeding, he or she should telephone the City Clerk at (407) 851-2920. 



I CALL TO ORDER 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
Tuesday, January 15, 2019 

Council President Dowless called the January 15, 2019 City Council meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 
Council Pres ident Dowless asked for a moment of silence and then led everyone in the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

City Clerk Meeks announced that all Council members were present ho1vever, Mayor Bagshaw was not in 
attendance. 

The following attendance is noted: 

Attendees: 

John Dowless, Council President 
Richard Alan Horn, Council Member 
Ben Pierce, Council Member 
Lee Chotas, Council Member 
Susan Fortini, Council Member 

Absent : 

Ray Bagshaw, Mayor 

Staff: 
Bea Meeks, City Clerk 
John Freeburg, Police Chief 
Shannon Patterson, PD Manager 
Drew Smith, City Attorney 

I PRESENTATION 

I. Mayoral Proclamation- "School Choice Week" 

City C Jerk Meeks announced that there is no one in attendance to receive the Proclamation and that it 
would be mailed to the person who requested the Proclamation. 

I CONSENT AGENDA 

I. Review and Approval of Minutes 

• December 18,2018 City Council Meeting Minutes 



City Council Minutes January 15, 2019 Page 2 

Couuci/ JV ember Hom moved to approve th e minutes as presentedj second by Council 1V ember C!Jotas. 
Approved (510) 

I ORDJNAl'{CES 

Tone. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS (ORDlNAl'ifCES - SECOND READINGS & RELATED ACTION) 

1. ORDil'iANCE 2018-13 - AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY OF EDGEWOOD 
AMENDING THE CITY OF EDGEWOOD CODE OF ORDINANCES CHAPTER 106 TO 
MAKE MODIFICATIONS TO BRJ TG THE REGULATIONS INTO AGREEMENT WITH 
THE MOST CURRENT FEMA-APPROVED, CODE-COMPANION FLOODPLAIN 
MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE FOR FLORJDA COMMUNITIES; TO ADOPT NEW 
FLOOD HAZARD MAPS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; MrD PROVIDING FOR 
A EFFECTIVE DATE. 

2. ORDINANCE 2018-1 6 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
EDGEWOOD, FLORJDA, ADOPTING THE 20 18/2019 FIVE YEAR CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM ANNUAL UPDATE; PROVIDING FOR LEGISLATIVE 
FfNDINGS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR EXCLUSION FROM 
CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTI VE DATE. 

City Clerk Meeks explained that the Orlando Sentinel's system went down and they were unable to 
advertise Ordinances 2018-13 and 2018-1 6. For this reason, City Clerk Meeks requested Council move 
the two Ordinances for public reading in the February City Council meeting. It was the consensus of 
Cormci l to move both Ordinances to the Febm ary 19, 2019 agenda. City Clerk Meeks said the request 
would he made to publish the Ordinances, as required by Statute. 

I UNFll' USHED BUSINESS 

None. 

l'fEW BUSINESS 

1. Review & Consideration of Code Enforcement Magistrate and Red Light 
Hearing Officer 

City Attorney Smith explained that Attorney Bill Reischmann has a conflict and can no longer 
serve as the City's Special Magistrate before code enforcement hearings. He said Attorney 
Reischmann recommended that Attorney Debra Nutcher move from being the City's Red Light 
Hearing Officer to the Special Magistrate. Additionally, Attorney Reischrnann recommended 
Attorney Kate T. Hollis serve as the Red Light Hearing Officer. City Attorney Smith said he 
agrees with the recommendation and recommended Council approve. 

Council Member C/r otas made tire Nfotion for A ttom ey Debra Nutclzer to serve as the City's 
Special Magistrate; Second by Council JV!ember Hom. Approved (510). 

Council lYiember Chotas made the Nfotion for A ttom ey Kate T. Hollis to serve as the City's 
R ed L ight Hearing Officer; S econd by Council JY!ember Fortini. Approved (510). 

2 



City Council Minutes January 15, 2019 Page 3 

2. Appointment(s) to Planning & Zoning Board 

City Clerk ]\leeks reported that Planning & Zoning Board member Regina Dunay sent an email 
to staff confinning the end of her 3 -year term and said she did not wish to continue serving on 
the board. City Clerk f.!eeks said that in addition to Ms. Dunay, Plarming & Zoning Board 
/\•!ember Chris Rader's term was also up on December 31, 2018. City Clerk Meeks said Mayor 
Bagshaw is recommending the reappointment of ctu·is Rader to the Board. Additionally, she 
said the Mayor \Viii be revie\Ying appointment forms from those wishing to serve on the Planning 
& Zoning Board. He plans to make a recommendation for the final appointment in the February 
meeting. 

Cowzcil JV[ember Fortini made tlte 11fotion to approve 1lfayor Bagshaw's recommendation to 
reappoint Chris Rader to tlte Planning & Zoning board; Second by Council i'dember Horn. 
Apprm·ed (510). 

3. 2019 Vote Processing Equipment Use Agreement and Elections Services 
Contract for Municipal Elections 

City Clerk Meeks reported that the election Agreement is essentially the same Agreement that Council 
approYes annually. City Clerk Meeks recommended that Council agree to marking "yes" in the boxes on 
page nine of the agreement. 

Cou11cil President Dowless made the 1vfotion to approve the agreement with City Clerk J'.teeks 
recommendation; Second by Council 1lfember Fortini. Approved (5). 

Ll ~G~E~N~E~RA~L~lli~'~FO~ill~NIA~T~IO~N~'-----------------------------------------~ 

None. 

[ CITIZEN COMMENTS 

Ralph Rocheford, HOA President of Camelot by the Lake, spoke regarding Waste 
Management's service fees. Mr. Rocheford said he contacted other companies and their fees for 
the same service was lower. 

City Attorney Smith explained the City's Franchise Fee Agreement with Waste Management. 

City Clerk Meeks asked that before Council gives any consideration in the matter, they allow her 
an opportunity to talk to Ron Prium from Waste Management. City Clerk Meeks asked Mr. 
Roclleford to provide her with a copy of the Waste Management Agreement and quotes for 
services from other solid waste companies that he referenced in his comments. Mr. Rocheford 
agreed to provide her with copies. 

[13QARDS & COMNJJTTJ<:ES .. ___ -=~-----~~~~~~---------------__j 

None. 

3 



City Council Minutes January 15, 2019 Page 4 

I STAFFREPORTS ----------------

Police Chief Freeburg: 

• Monthly Report 

Chief Freeburg referred to his monthly report and asked if there were any questions; there were none. 

City Attorney Smith: 

1'-'o report. 

City Clerk i\leeks: 

City Clerk Meeks reported on the following: 

• Confirmed that the Mayor is working with Commissioner Uribe and Orange County on 
getting the "No Trucks" signage on Holden Avenue. 

• Reported on concerns regarding trees on Glen Grove Lane. City Clerk Meeks said the 
Mayor is aware of the concerns and is \\orking jointly with stafl~ tree arborist and the 
City Engineer. 

• Confirmed renewal registration for the City's SAM (U.S. Government's System for 
Avvard Management) has been submitted. City Clerk Meeks said this is tied into the 
City's DUNS number and the updated registration is necessary to receive federal funding, 
i.e. police grants and FEMA funds. 

I MAYOR & COUNCIL REPORTS 

Mayor Bagshaw-

Absent. 

Council President Dowless-

Council President Dowless said he would like for Council to revisit the City's tree Ordinance. 
He said he wants to make sure that the trees being allowed to be placed in the City will not cause 
problems twenty-five years from now, like the problems the City has been having. 

Council Member Chotas-

Council Member Chatas asked about the status of the work on Orange Avenue and Harbour Island Road. 
Council President Dowless said he is following up on the status of the work 

Council Member Fortini-

Council Member Fortini reminded everyone about the upcoming Edgewood Eats event on Friday, January 
18,2019. 

4 



City Council Minutes January 15, 2019 Page 5 

Councill\Iember Horn-

No report. 

Councill\Iember Pierce: 

No report. 

I ADJOURi\'i\IENT 

Having no further business or discussion, Council Member Fortini made a Motion to adjourn; Second by 
Couocil Member Chatas. The City Council meeting adjourned at 7:06p.m. 

John Dowless 
Council President 

Apprmed on 

Bea L. Meeks, Mlv!C, CPM, CBTO 
City Clerk 

5 



ORDINANCE NO. 2018-13 

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY OF EDGEWOOD AMENDING THE CITY OF 
EDGEWOOD CODE OF ORDINANCES CHAPTER 106 TO MAKE 
MODIFICATIONS TO BRING THE REGULATIONS INTOAGREEMENTWITH 
THE MOST CURRENT FEMA-APPROVED, CODE-COMPANION 
FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE FOR FLORIDA 
COMMUNITIES; TO ADOPT NEW FLOOD HAZARD MAPS; PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the Legislature of the State of Florida has, in Chapter 166, Florida Statutes, 
conferred upon local governments the authority to adopt regulations designed to promote the 
public health, safety, and general welfare of its citizenry; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Edgewood participates in the National Flood Insurance Program 
and the City of Edgewood desires to continue to meet the requirements of Title 44 Code of 
Federal Regulations, Sections 59 and 60, necessary for such participation; and 

WHEREAS, the Federal Emergency Management Agency has revised and reissued the 
Flood Insurance Study for Orange County, Florida and Incorporated Areas, with an effective 
date of June 20, 2018; and 

WHEREAS, the City Counc.ll determined that it is in the public interest to amend the 
Code of Ordinances Chapter 106, to make modifications to bring the regulations into agreement 
with the most current Model Floodplain Management Ordinance approved by FEMA for Florida 
communities. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Edgewood 
that Chapter 106 of the Edgewood Code of Ordinances is amended as set forth in the following 
amendments, as shown in strikethrough and underline format in Section 2. 

SECTION 1. RECITALS. 

The foregoing whereas clauses are incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof. 

SECTION 2. This ordinance amends Chapter 106 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Edgewood as follows: 

CHAPTER 106. FLOOD DAMAGE PREVENTION AND PROTECTION. 

ARTICLE 1 ADMINISTRATION 

DIVISION 1 GENERAL 

106-1 Title. These regulations shall be known as the Floodplain Management Ordinance of the 
City of Edgewood, hereinafter referred to as "this ordinance." 

1 06·2 Scope. The provisions of this ordinance shall apply to all development that is wholly within 

1 
ORDINANCE 2018-13 

6 



or partially within any flood hazard area, including but not limited to the subdivision of land; fill ing, 
grading, and other site improvements and utility installations; construction, alteration, remodeling, 
enlargement, improvement, replacement, repair, relocation or demolition of buildings, structu res, 
and facilities that are exempt from the Florida Building Code; placement, installat ion, or replacement 
of manufactured homes and manufactured buildings; installation or replacement of tanks; placement 
of recreational vehicles; installation of swimming pools; and any other development. 

106-3 I ntent. The purposes of this ordinance and the flood load and flood resistant construction 
requirements of the Florida Building Code are to establish minimum requirements to safeguard 
the public health, safety, and general welfare and to minimize public and private losses due to 
flooding th rough regulation of development in flood hazard areas to: 

(1) Minimize unnecessary disruption of commerce, access and public service during times 
of f looding; 

(2) Require the use of appropria te construction practices in order to prevent or minimize 
future flood damage; 

(3) Manage f illing, grading, dredging, mining, paving, excavation, drilling operations, storage 
of equipment or materials, and other development which may increase flood damage or 
erosion potential; 

(4) Manage the alteration of flood hazard areas, watercourses, and shorel ines to min imize 
the impact of development on the natural and beneficial functions of the floodplain ; 

(5) Minimize damage to publ ic and private facilities and uti lities; 

(6) Help maintain a stable tax base by provi ding for the sound use and development of flood 
hazard areas; 

(7) Minimize the need for future expenditure of public funds for flood control projects and 
response to and recovery from flood events; and 

(8) Meet the requirements of the National Flood Insurance Program for community 
participation as set forth in the Title 44 Code of Federal Reg ulations, Section 59.22. 

106-4 Coordination with the Florida Building Code. This ordinance is intended to be 
administered and enforced in conjunction with the Florida Building Code. W here cited, ASCE 
24 refers to the edition of the standard that is referenced by the Florida Building Code. 

106-5 W arning. The degree of flood protection required by this ordinance and the Florida Building 
Code, as amended by this community, is considered the minimum reasonable for regulatory 
purposes and is based on scientific and engineering considerations. Larger floods can and will 
occur. Flood heights may be increased by man-made or natural causes. This ordinance does not 
imply that land outside of mapped special flood hazard areas, or that uses permitted within such 
flood hazard areas, will be free from flooding or flood damage. The flood hazard areas and base 
flood elevations contained in the Flood Insurance Study and shown on Flood Insurance Rate Maps 
and the requirements of Title 44 Code of Federal Regulations, Sections 59 and 60 may be 
revised by the Federal Emergency Management Agency, requi ring this community to revise these 
regulations to remain eligible for participation in the National Flood Insurance Program. No 
guaranty of vested use, existing use .. or future use is implied or expressed by compliance with 
this ordinance. 

106-6 Disclaimer of Liabi lity. This ordinance shall not create liability on the part of the City of 

2 
ORDINANCE 2018-13 

7 



Edgewood or by any officer or employee thereof for any flood damage that results from rel iance 
on this ordinance or any administrative decision lavvfully made thereunder. 

Sees. 106-7- 106-20.- Reserved. 

DIVISION 2 APPLICABILITY 

106-21 General. Where there is a conflict between a general requirement and a specific 
requirement , the specific requirement shall be appl icable. 

106-22 Areas to which this ordinance applies. This ordinance shall apply to all flood hazard 
areas with in the City of Edgewood, as established in Section 106-23 of this ordinance. 

106-23 Basis for establishing f lood hazard areas. 
(a) The areas of special flood hazard identified by the Federal Emergency Management Agency 
in the F lood Insurance Study for Orange County, Florida and Incorporated Areas ~f 
Edgewood, dated September 25, 2009, dated June 20. 2018, with the accompanying maps and 
other supporting data, and any subsequent amendments and revisions thereto, and the 
accompanying Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM), and all subsequent amendments and 
revisions to such maps, are adopted by reference and declared to be a part of this ordinance. 
The Flood Insurance Study and Flood Insurance Rate Map are on fi le at the City of Edgewood 
City Hall, 405 Larue Avenue, Edgewood, Florida 32809. 

(b) Submission of additional data to establish flood hazard areas. To establish flood hazard 
areas and base f lood elevations, pursuant to Article 1, Division 5 of this ordinance the 
Floodplain Administrator may require submission of additional data. Where field surveyed 
topography prepared by a Florida licensed professional surveyor or digital topography accepted 
by the community indicates that ground elevations: · 

(1) Are below the closest applicable base flood elevation , even in areas not delineated as a 
special flood hazard area on a FIRM, the area shall be considered as flood hazard area 
and subject to the requirements of th is ordinance and, as applicable, the requirements 
of the Florida Building Code. 

(2) Are above the closest applicable base flood elevation, the area shaH be regulated as 
special flood hazard area unless the applicant obtains a Letter of Map Change that 
removes the area from the special flood hazard area. 

106-24 Other laws. The provisions of this ordinance shall not be deemed to nullify any 
provisions of local, state or federal law. 

106-25 Abrogation and greater restrictions. This ordinance supersedes any ordinance in 
effect for management of development in flood hazard areas. However, it is not intended to 
repeal or abrogate any existing ordinances including but not limited to land development 
regulations, zoning ordinances, stormwater management regulations, or the Florida Building 
Code. In the event of a conflict between this ordinance and any other ordinance, the more 
restri ct ive shall govern. This ordinance shall not impair any deed restriction, covenant or 
easement, but any land that is subject to such interests shall also be governed by this 
ordinance. 

10626 Interpretation. In the interpretation and application of this ordinance, all provisions sha ll 
be: 

3 
ORDINANCE 2018-13 

8 



(1) Considered as minimum requirements; 

(2) Liberally construed in favor of the governing body; and 

(3) Deemed neither to limit nor repeal any other powers granted under state statutes. 

Sees. 106-27-106-50.- Reserved. 

DIVISION 3 DUTIES AND POWERS OF THE FLOODPLAIN ADMINISTRATOR 

106-51 Designation. The Mayor of the City of Edgewood is designated as the Floodplain 
Administrator. The Floodplain Administrator may delegate performance of certain duties to other 
employees. 

106-52 General. The Floodplain Administrator is authorized and directed to administer and 
enforce the provisions of this ordinance. The Floodplain Administrator shall have the authority to 
render interpretations of this ordinance consistent with the intent and purpose of this ordinance 
and may establish policies and procedures in order to clarify the application of its provisions. 
Such interpretations, policies, and procedures shall not have the effect of waiving requirements 
specifically provided in this ordinance without the granting of a variance pursuant to Article I, 
Division 7 of this ordinance. 

106-53 Applications and permits. The Floodplain Administrator, in coordination with other 
pertinent offices of the community, shall: 

(1) Review applications and plans to determine whether proposed new development will be 
located in flood hazard areas; 

(2) Review applications for modification of any existing development in flood hazard areas 
for compliance with the requirements of this ordinance; 

(3) Interpret flood hazard area boundaries where such interpretation is necessary to 
determine the exact location of boundaries; a person contesting the determination shall 
have the opportunity to appeal the interpretation; 

(4) Provide available flood elevation and flood hazard information; 

(5) Determine whether additional flood hazard data shall be obtained from other sources or 
shall be developed by an applicant; 

(6) Review applications to determine whether proposed development will be reasonably 
safe from flooding; 

(7) Issue floodplain development permits or approvals for development other than buildings 
and structures that are subject to the Florida Building Code, including buildings, 
structures and facilities exempt from the Florida Building Code, when compliance with 
this ordinance is demonstrated, or disapprove the same in the event of noncompliance; 
and 

(8) Coordinate with and provide comments to the Building Official to assure that 
app!icaf1ons, plan reviews, and inspecf1ons for buildings and structures in flood hazard 
areas comply with the applicable provisions of this ordinance. 

106-54 Substantial improvement and substantial damage determinations {leterminatioFIS 
fGr existin~ buildin~s and structures. For applications for building permits to improve 
buildings and structures, including alterations, movement, enlargement, replacement, repair, 

4 
ORDIN~~CE 2018-13 

9 



change of occupancy, additions, rehabilitations, renovations, substantial improvements, repairs 
of substantial damage, and any other improvement of or work on such buildings and structures, 
the Floodplain Administrator, in coordination with the Building Official, shall: 

(1) Estimate the market value, or require the applicant to obtain an appraisal of the market 
value prepared by a qualified independent appraiser, of the building or structure before 
the start of construction of the proposed work; in the case of repair, the market value of 
the building or structure shall be the market value before the damage occurred and 
before any repairs are made; 

(2) Compare the cost to perform the improvement, the cost to repair a damaged building to 
its pre-damaged condif1on, or the combined costs of improvements and repairs, '1f 
applicable, to the market value of the building or structure; 

(3) Determine and document whether the proposed work constitutes substantial 
improvement or repair of substantial damage; and 

(4) Notify the applicant if it is determined that the work constitutes substantial improvement 
or repair of substantial damage and that compliance with the flood resistant construction 
requirements of the Florida Building Code and this ordinance is required. 

106-55 Modifications of the strict application of the requirements of the Florida Building 
Code. The Floodplain Administrator shall review requests submitted to the Building Official that 
seek approval to modify the strict application of the flood load and flood resistant construction 
requirements of the Florida Building Code to determine whether such requests require the 
granting of a variance pursuant to Article I, Division 7 of this ordinance. 

106-56 Notices and orders. The Floodplain Administrator shall coordinate with appropriate 
local agencies for the issuance of all necessary notices or orders to ensure compliance with this 
ordinance. 

106-57 Inspections. The Floodplain Administrator shall make the required inspections as 
specified in Article I, Division 6 of this ordinance for development that is not subject to the 
Florida Building Code, including buildings, structures and facilities exempt from the Florida 
Building Code. The Floodplain Administrator shall inspect flood hazard areas to determine if 
development is undertaken without issuance of a permit 

106-58 Other duties of the Floodplain Administrator. The Floodplain Administrator shall 
have other duties, including but not limited to: 

(1) Establish, in coordination with the Building Official, procedures for administering and 
documenting determinations of substantial improvement and substantial damage made 
pursuant to Section 106-54 of this ordinance; 

(2) Require that applicants proposing alteration of a watercourse notify adjacent 
communities and the Florida Division of Emergency Management, State Floodplain 
Management Office, and submit copies of such notifications to the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA); 

(3) Require applicants who submit hydrologic and hydraulic engineering analyses to support 
permit applications to submit to FEMA the data and information necessary to maintain 
the Flood Insurance Rate Maps if the analyses propose to change base flood elevations, 
flood hazard area boundaries, or floodway designations; such submissions shall be 
made within 6 months of such data becoming available; 

5 
ORDINANCE 2018-13 

10 



(4) Review required design certifications and documentation of elevations specified by this 
ordinance and the Florida Builcling Code and this ordinance to determ ine that such 
certifications and documentations are complete; and 

(5) Notify the Federal Emergency Management Agency when the corporate boundaries of 
the City of Edgewood are modified. 

106-59 Floodplain management records. Regardless of any limitation on the period required 
for retention of public records, the Floodplain Administrator shall maintain and permanently keep 
and make available for public inspection all records that are necessary for the administration of 
this ordinance and the flood resistant construction requirements of the Florida Building Code, 
including Flood Insurance Rate Maps; Letters of Map Change; records of issuance of permits 
and denial of permits; determinations of whether proposed work constitutes substantial 
improvement or repair of substantial damage; required design certificati ons and documentation 
of elevations specified by the Florida Building Code and this ordinance; notifications to adjacent 
communit ies, FEMA, and the state related to alterations of watercourses; assurances that the 
flood carrying capacity of altered watercourses will be maintained; documentation related to 
appeals and variances, including justification for issuance or denial; and records of enforcement 
actions taken pursuant to this ord inance and the flood resistant construction requirements of the 
Florida Building Code. These records shall be available for public inspection at City of 
Edgewood City Hall, 405 Larue Avenue, Edgewood, Florida 32809 

Sees. 106-60-106-80. - Reserved. 

DIVISION 4 PERMITS 

106-81 Permits required. Any owner or owner's authorized agent (hereinafter "applicant") who 
intends to undertake any development activity within the scope of this ordinance, including 
buildings, structures and faci lities exempt from the Florida Building Code, which is wholly within 
or partially within any flood hazard area shall first make application to the Floodplain 
Administrator, and the Building Official if applicable, and shall obtain the required permit(s) and 
approval(s). No such permit or approval shall be issued until compliance with the requirements of 
this ordinance and all other applicable codes and regulations has been satisfied. 

106-82 Floodplain development permits or approvals. 
(a) Floodplain development permits or approvals shall be issued pursuant to this ordinance 

for any development activities not subject to the requirements of the Florida Building Code, 
includ ing buildings, structures and facilities exempt from the Florida Building Code. Depending 
on the nature and extent of proposed development that includes a building or structure, the 
Floodplain Administrator may determine that a floodplain development permit or approval is required 
in addition to a building permit. 

(b) Buildings, structures and facilities exempt from the Florida Building Code. Pursuant to the 
requirements of federal regulation for participation in the National Flood Insurance Program (44 
C.F.R. Sections 59 and 60), floodplain development permits or approvals shall be required for 
the following buildings, structures and facilities that are exempt from the Florida Building Code 
and any further exemptions provided by law, which are subject to the requirements of this 
ord inance: 

(1) Railroads and ancillary facilities associated with the railroad. 

(2) Nonresidential farm buildings on farms, as provided in section 604.50, F.S. 

6 
ORDINANCE 2018-13 

11 



(3) Temporary bui ldings or sheds used exclusively for construction purposes. 

(4) Mobile or modular structures used as temporary offices. 

(5) Those structures or faci lities of electric utilities , as defined in section 366.02, F.S., which 
are directly involved in the generation, transmission, or distribution of electricity. 

(6) Chickees constructed by the Miccosukee Tribe of Indians of Florida or the Seminole 
Tribe of Florida. As used in this paragraph, the term "chickee" means an open-sided 
wooden hut that has a thatched roof of palm or palmetto or other traditional materials, 
and that does not incorporate any electrical, plumbing, or other non-wood features. 

(7) Family mausoleums not exceeding 250 square feet in area which are prefabricated and 
assembled on site or preassembled and delivered on site and have walls, roofs, and a 
floor constructed of granite, marble, or reinforced concrete. 

(8) Temporary housing provided by the Department of Corrections to any prisoner in the 
state correctional system. 

(9) Structures identified in section 553.73(10)(k), F.S. , are not exempt from the Florida 
Building Code if such structures are located in flood hazard areas established on Flood 
Insurance Rate Maps 

106-83 Application for a permit or approval. To obtain a floodplain development permit or 
approval the applicant shall first file an application in writing on a form furnished by the 
community. The information provided shall: 

(l ) Identify and describe the development to be covered by the permit or approval. 

(2) Describe the land on which the proposed development is to be conducted by legal 
description, street address or similar description that will readily identify and definitively 
locate the site. 

(3) Indicate the use and occupancy for which the proposed development is intended. 

(4) Be accompanied by a site plan or construction documents as specified in Article I, 
Division 5 of this ordinance. 

{5) State the valuation of the proposed work. 

(6) Be signed by the applicant or the applicant's authorized agent. 

{7) Give such other data and information as required by the Floodplain Administrator. 

106-84 Validity of permit or approval. The issuance of a floodplain development permit or 
approval pursuant to this ordinance shall not be construed to be a permit for, or approval of, any 
violation of this ordinance, the Florida Building Codes, or any other ordinance of this community. 
The issuance of permits based on submitted applications, construction documents, and 
information shall not prevent the Floodplain Administrator from requiring the correction of errors 
and omissions. 

106-85 Expiration. A floodplain development perm it or approval shall become invalid unless the 
work authorized by such permit is commenced within 180 days after its issuance, or if the work 
authorized is suspended or abandoned for a period of 180 days after the work commences. 
Extensions for periods of not more than 180 days each shall be requested in writing and 
justifiable cause shall be demonstrated. 

7 
ORDINANCE 2 01 8-13 

12 



106-86 Suspension or revocation. The Floodplain Administrator is authorized to suspend or 
revoke a floodplain development perm it or approval if the permit was issued in error, on the 
basis of incorrect, inaccurate or incomplete information, or in violation of this ordinance or any 
other ordinance, regulation or requirement of th is community. 

106-87 Other perm its required . Floodplain development permits and building permits shall 
include a cond ition that all other applicable state or federal permits be obtained before 
commencement of the permitted development, including but not limited to the following: 

(1) The St. Johns River Water Management District ; section 373.036, F.S. 

(2) Florida Department of Health for onsite sewage treatment and disposal systems; section 
381.0065, F.S. and Chapter 64E-6, F.A.C. 

(3) Florida Department of Environmental Protection for activities subject to the Joint Coastal 
Permit; section 161.055, F.S. 

(4) Florida Department of Environmental Protection for activities that affect wetlands and 
alter surface water flows, in conjunction with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers; Section 
404 of the Clean Water Act. 

(5) Federal permits and approvals. 

Secs.106-88- 106-110.- Reserved . 

DIVISION 5 SITE PLANS AND CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS 

106-111 Information for development in flood hazard areas. The site plan or construction 
documents for any development subject to the requirements of this ordinance shall be drawn to 
scale and shall include, as applicable to the proposed development: 

(1) Delineation of flood hazard areas, floodway boundaries and flood zone(s), base flood 
elevation(s), and ground elevations if necessary for review of the proposed 
development. 

(2) Where fl.eed hazard areas, base flood elevations, or floodway data are not included on 
the FIRM or in the Flood Insurance Study, they shall be established in accordance with 
Section 1 06-1 12(2) or (3) of this ordinance. 

(3) Where the parcel on which the proposed development will take place will have more 
than 50 lots or is larger than 5 acres and the base flood elevations are not included on 
the FIRM or in the Flood Insurance Study, such elevations shall be established in 
accordance with Section 1 06-112(1) ~of this ordinance. 

(4) Location of the proposed activity and proposed structures, and locations of existing 
buildings and structures. 

(5) Location, extent, amount, and proposed final grades of any fill ing, grading, or 
excavation. 

(6) Where the placement of fi ll is proposed, the amount, type, and source of fill material ; 
compaction specifications; a description of the intended purpose of the fi ll areas; and 
evidence that the proposed fill areas are the minimum necessary to achieve the intended 
purpose. 

(7) Existing and proposed alignment of any proposed alteration of a watercourse. 

8 
ORDINANCE 2018-1 3 

13 



The Floodpla in Administrator is authorized to waive the submission of site plans, construction 
documents, and other data that are required by this ordinance but that are not required to be 
prepared by a reg istered design professional if it is found that the nature of the proposed 
development is such that the review of such submissions is not necessary to ascertain 
compliance with this ordinance. 

106-1121nformation in f lood hazard areas without base flood elevations (approximate 
Zo ne A) . Where flood hazard areas are delineated on the FIRM and base flood elevation data 
have not been provided, the Floodplain Administrator shall: 

( 1) Requ ire the applicant to include base flood elevation data prepared in accordance with 
currently accepted engineering practices. 

(2) Obtain, review, and provide to applicants base flood elevation and floodway data 
available f rom a federal or state agency or other source or require the applicant to 
obtain and use base flood elevation and f loodway data available from a federal or state 
agency or other source-;-BF. 

(3) W here base flood elevation and floodway data are not available from another source , 
where the available data are deemed by the Floodplain Administrator to not reasonably 
reflect f looding cond itions, or where the available data are known to be scientifically or 
technically incorrect or otherwise inadequate: 

(a) Require the appl icant to include G~ base flood elevation data prepared 
in accordance with currently accepted engineering practices; or 

(b) Specify that the base flood elevation is two (2) feet above the highest 
adjacent grade at the location of the development, provided there is no 
evidence indicating flood depths have been or may be greater than two (2) 
feet. 

(4) Where the base flood elevation data are to be used to support a Letter of Map Change 
from FEMA, advise the applicant that the analyses shall be prepared by a Florida 
licensed engineer in a format required by FEMA, and that it shall be the responsibility of 
the applicant to satisfy the submittal requirements and pay the processing fees. 

106-113 Additional analyses and certifications. As appl icable to the location and nature of 
the proposed development activity, and in addition to the requirements of this section, the 
applicant shall have the following analyses signed and sealed by a Florida li censed engineer for 
submission with the site plan and construction documents: 

(1) For development activities proposed to be located in a regulatory floodway, a floodway 
encroachment analysis that demonstrates that the encroachment of the proposed 
development wil l not cause any increase in base flood elevations; where the applicant 
proposes to undertake development activities that do increase base flood elevations, the 
applicant shall submit such analysis to FEMA as specified in Section 106-114 of this 
ordinance and shall submit the Conditional Letter of Map Revision, if issued by FEMA, 
with the site plan and construction documents. 

(2 ) For development activities proposed to be located in a riverine flood hazard area for 
which base flood elevations are included in the Flood Insurance Study or on the FIRM 
and floodways have not been designated, hydrologic and hydraulic analyses that a 
floodway encroachment analysis which_ demonstrates that the cumulative effect of the 
proposed development, when combined with all other existing and anticipated flood 

9 
ORDINANCE 2 018-13 

14 



hazard area encroachments, will not increase the base flood elevation more than one (1) 
foot at any point within the community. Th is requirement does not apply in isolated flood 
hazard areas not connected to a riverine flood hazard area or in flood hazard areas 
identified as Zone AO or Zone AH. 

(3) For alteration of a watercourse, an engineering analysis prepared in accordance with 
standard engineering practices which demonstrates that the flood-carrying capacity of 
the altered or relocated portion of the watercourse will not be decreased, and 
certification that the altered watercourse shall be maintained in a manner which 
preserves the channel's flood-carrying capacity; the applicant shall submit the analysis to 
FEMA as specified in Section 106-11 4 of th is ordinance. 

106-114 Submission of additional data. When additional hydrologic, hydraulic or other 
engineering data, studies, and additional analyses are submitted to support an application, the 
applicant has the right to seek a Letter of Map Change from FEMA to change the base flood 
elevations, change floodway boundaries, or change boundaries of flood hazard areas shown on 
FIRMs, and to submit such data to FEMA for such purposes. The analyses shall be prepared 
by a Florida licensed engineer in a format requ ired by FEMA. Submittal requirements and 
processing fees shall be the responsibi li ty of the applicant. 

Sees . 106-115-106-1 30. -Reserved. 

DIVISION 6 INSPECTIONS 

106-131 Development for which a floodplain development permit or approval is required shall be 
subject to inspection. 

(1) Development other than buildings and structures. The Floodplain Administrator shall inspect 
all development to determine compliance with the requirements of this ordinance and the 
conditions of issued floodplain development permits or approvals. 

(2) Buildings, structures and facilities exempt from the Florida Building Code. The Floodplain 
Administrator shall inspect bu ildings, structures and facilities exempt from the Florida Building 
Code to determine compliance with the requirements of this ordinance and the conditions of 
issued floodplain development permits or approvals. 

a. Buildings, structures and facilities exempt from the Florida Building Code, lowest floor 
inspection. Upon placement of the lowest floor, including basement, and prior to further vertical 
construction, the owner of a building, structure or facility exempt from the Florida Building Code, 
or the owner's authorized agent, shall submit to the Floodplain Administrator: 

(1)1f a design flood elevation was used to determine the required elevation of the 
lowest floor, the certification of elevation of the lowest floor prepared and sealed by 
a Florida licensed professional surveyor; or 

(2)1f the elevation used to determine the required elevation of the lowest fl oor was 
determined in accordance with Section 1 06- 112.Qll.Ql~e. of this ordinance, the 
documentation of height of the lowest floor above highest adjacent grade, prepared 
by the owner or the owner's authorized agent. 

b. Buildings, structures and facilities exempt from the Florida Building Code, final inspection. 
As part of the fin al inspecti on, the owner or owner's authorized agent shall submit to the 

10 
ORDINANCE 2 018-13 

15 



Floodpla in Administrator a fina l certification of elevation of the lowest floor or final 
documentation of the height of the lowest floor above the highest adjacent grade; such 
certifications and documentations shal l be prepared as specified in Section 106-131 (2)(a) of th is 
ordinance. 

(3) Manufactured homes. The Building Official shall inspect manufactured homes that are 
installed or replaced in flood hazard areas to determine compliance with the requ irements of this 
ordinance and the conditions of the issued permit. Upon placement of a manufactured home, 
certification of the elevation of the lowest floor shall be submitted to the Building Official. 

Secs. 106-132-106-150.- Reserved . 

DIVISION 7 VARIANCES AND APPEALS 

1 06·151 General. The Planning and Zoning Commission shall hear and decide on requests for 
appeals and requests for variances from the strict application of this ordinance. Pursuant to 
section 553.73(5), F.S., the Planning and Zoning Commission shall hear and decide on 
requests for appeals and requests for variances from the strict application of the flood resistant 
construction requirements of the Florida Building Code. 

106-152 Appeals. The Planning and Zoning Commission shall hear and decide appeals when 
it is alleged there is an error in any requirement, decision, or determinat ion made by the 
Floodplain Administrator in the administration and enforcement of this ordinance. Any person 
aggrieved by the decision of the Planning and Zoning Commission may appeal such decision to 
the Circuit Court, as provided by Florida Statutes. 

106-153 Limitations on authority to grant variances. 
(a) The Planning and Zoning Commission shal l base its decisions on variances on 

technical j ustifications submitted by applicants, the considerations for issuance in Section 106-
156 of this ordinance, the conditions of issuance set forth in Section 106-157 of this ordinance, 
and the comments and recommendations of the Floodplain Administrator and the Building 
Official. The Planning and Zoning Commission has the right to attach such conditions as it 
deems necessary to further the purposes and objectives of this ordinance. 

(b) Restrictions in floodways. A variance shall not be issued for any proposed 
devel"opment in a floodway if any increase in base flood elevations would result, as evidenced 
by the applicable analyses and certifications required in Section 106-113 of this ord inance. 

1 06·154 Historic buildings. A variance is authorized to be issued for the repair, improvement, 
or rehabilit ation of a historic building that is determined eligible for the exception to the flood 
resistant construction requirements of the Florida Building Code, Existing Building, Chapter 11 
Historic Buildings, upon a determination that the proposed repair, improvement, or rehabilitation 
will not preclude the building's continued designation as a historic building and the variance is 
the minimum necessary to preserve the historic character and design of the building. If the 
proposed work precludes the building's continued designation as a historic building, a variance 
sha ll not be granted and the building and any repair, improvement, and rehabil itation shall be 
subject to the requirements of the Florida Building Code. 

1 06·155 Functionally dependent uses. A variance is authorized to be issued for the 
construction or substantial improvement necessary for the conduct of a functionally dependent 
use, as defined in this ord inance, provided the variance meets the requirements of Section 106-

11 
ORDINANCE 2018-13 

16 



153(b), is the minimum necessary considering the flood hazard, and all due consideration has 
been given to use of methods and materials that minimize flood damage during occurrence of 
the base flood 

106-156 Considerations for issuance of variances. In reviewing requests for variances, the 
Planning and Zoning Commission shall consider all technical evaluations, all relevant factors, all 
other applicable provisions of the Florida Building Code, this ordinance, and the following 

(1) The danger that materials and debris may be swept onto other lands resulting in further 
injury or damage; 

(2) The danger to life and property due to flooding or erosion damage; 

(3) The susceptibility of the proposed development, including contents, to flood damage and 
the effect of such damage on current and future owners; 

(4) The importance of the services provided by the proposed development to the 
community; 

(5) The availability of alternate locations for the proposed development that are subject to 
lower risk of flooding or erosion; 

(5) The compatibility of the proposed development with existing and anticipated 
development; 

(7) The relationship of the proposed development to the comprehensive plan and floodplain 
management program for the area; 

(8) The safety of access to the property in times of flooding for ordinary and emergency 
vehicles; 

(9) The expected heights, velocity, duration, rate of rise and debris and sediment transport 
of the floodwaters and the effects of wave action, if applicable, expected at the site; and 

(1 0) The costs of providing governmental services during and after flood conditions 
including maintenance and repair of public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, 
electrical and water systems, streets and bridges. 

106-157 Conditions for issuance of variances. Variances shall be issued only upon: 

(1) Submission by the applicant, of a showing of good and sufficient cause that the unique 
characteristics of the size, configuration, or topography of the site limit compliance with 
any provision of this ordinance or the required elevation standards; 

(2) Determination by the Planning and Zoning Commission that: 

(a) Failure to grant the variance would result in exceptional hardsh.lp due to the 
physical characteristics of the land that render the lot undevelopable; increased 
costs to satisfy the requirements or inconvenience do not constitute hardship; 

(b) The granting of a variance will not result in increased flood heights, additional 
threats to public safety, extraordinary public expense, nor create nuisances, 
cause fraud on or victimization of the public or conflict with existing local laws 
and ordinances; and 

(c) The variance is the minimum necessary, considering the flood hazard, to afford 
relief; 

(3) Receipt of a signed statement by the applicant that the variance, if granted, shall be 

12 
ORDIN-~CE 2018-13 

17 



recorded in the Office of the Clerk of the Court in such a manner that it appears in the 
chain of title of the affected parcel of land; and 

(4) If the request is for a variance to allow construction of the lowest floo~ of a new building, 
or substantial improvement of a building, below the required elevation, a copy in the 
record of a written notice from the Floodplain Administrator to the applicant for the 
variance, specifying the difference between the base flood elevation and the proposed 
elevation of the lowest floor, stating that the cost of federal flood insurance will be 
commensurate with the increased risk resulting from the reduced floor elevation (up to 
amounts as high as $25 for $100 of insurance coverage), and stating that construction 
below the base flood elevation increases risks to life and property. 

Secs.106-158-106-180.- Reserved. 

SECTION 108 VIOLATIONS 

106-181 Violations. Any development that is not within the scope of the Florida Building Code 
but that is regulated by this ordinance that is performed without an issued permit, that is in 
conflict with an issued permit, or that does not fully comply with this ordinance, shall be deemed 
a violation of this ordinance. A building or structure without the documentation of elevation of 
the lowest floor, other required design certifications, or other evidence of compliance required 
by this ordinance or the Florida Building Code is presumed to be a violation until such time as 
that documentation is provided. 

1 06·182 Authority. For development that is not within the scope of the Florida Building Code 
but that is regulated by this ordinance and that is determined to be a violation, the Floodplain 
Administrator is authorized to serve notices of violation or stop work orders to owners of the 
property involved, to the owner's agent, or to the person or persons performing the work. 

106·183 Unlawful continuance. Any person who shall continue any work after having been 
served with a notice of violation or a stop work order, except such work as that person is 
directed to perform to remove or remedy a violation or unsafe condition, shall be subject to 
penalties as prescribed by law. 

Sees. 106-184-106-200.- Reserved. 

ARTICLE 2 DEFINITIONS 

DIVISION 1 GENERAL 

106-201 Scope. Unless otherwise expressly stated, the following words and terms shall, for the 
purposes of this ordinance, have the meanings shown in this section. 

106-202 Terms defined in the Florida Building Code. Where terms are not defined in this 
ordinance and are defined in the Florida Building Code, such terms shall have the meanings 
ascribed to them in that code. 

106-203 Terms not defined. Where terms are not defined in this ordinance or the Florida 
Building Code, such terms shall have ordinarily accepted meanings such as the context implies. 

13 
ORDINANCE 2018~13 

18 



Sees. 106-204- 106-220. -Reserved . 

DIVISION 2 DEFINITIONS 

106-221 Terms defined. 

Alte ration of a watercourse. A dam, impoundment, channel relocation, change in channel 
alignment, channelization, or change in cross-sectional area of the channel or the channel 
capacity, or any other form of modification which may alter, impede, retard or change the 
direction and/or velocity of the riverine flow of water during conditions of the base flood. 

Appeal. A request for a review of the Floodplain Administrator's interpretation of any provision 
of this ordinance or a request for a variance. 

ASCE 24. A standard titled Flood Resistant Design and Construction that is referenced by the 
Florida Building Code. ASCE 24 is developed and published by the American Society of Civil 
Engineers, Reston, VA. 

Base flood. A flood having a 1-percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given 
year. [Also defined in FBC, B, Section 1612.2.) The base flood is commonly referred to as the 
"1 00-year flood" or the "1-percent-annual chance flood." 

Base flood elevation . The elevation of the base f lood, including wave height, relative to the 
National Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD), North American Vertical Datum (NAVD) or other 
datum specified on the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM). [Also defined in FBC, 8, Section 
1612.2.) 

Basement. The portion of a building having its floor subgrade (below ground level) on all sides. 
[Also defined in FBC, 8 , Section 1612.2.) 

Design flood . The flood associated with the greater of the following two areas: [Also defined in 
FBC, B, Section 1612.2.) 

(1) Area with a floodplain subject to a 1-percent or greater chance of ttoodlng in any year; or 

(2) Area designated as a flood hazard area on the community's f lood hazard map, or 
otherwise legally designated. 

Design flood elevation. The elevation of the "design flood," including wave height, relative to 
the datum specified on the community's legal ly designated flood hazard map. In areas 
designated as Zone AO, the design flood elevation shall be the elevation of the highest existing 
grade of the building 's perimeter plus the depth number (in feet) specified on the flood hazard 
map. In areas designated as Zone AO where the depth number is not specified on the map, the 
depth number shall be taken as being equal to 2 feet. [Also defined in FBC, B, Section 1612.2. ] 

Development. Any man-made change to improved or unimproved real estate, including but not 
limited to, buildings or other structures, tanks, temporary structures, temporary or permanent 
storage of equipment or materials, mining, dredging, filling, grading, paving, excavations, drilling 
operations or any other land disturbing activities. 

Encroachment. The placement of fill , excavation, buildings, permanent structures or other 
development into a flood hazard area which may impede or alter the flow capacity of riverine 

14 
ORDINANCE 2018- 13 

19 



flood hazard areas. 

Existing building and existing structure. Any buildings and structures for which the "start of 
construction" commenced before January 16, 1988. [Also defined in FBC, 8, Section 1612.2.] 

Existing manufactured home park or subdivision. A manufactured home park or subdivision 
for which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured homes 
are to be affixed (including, at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, 
and either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads) is completed before January 16, 
1988. 

Expansion to an existing manufactured home park or subdivision. The preparation of 
additional sites by the construction of facilities for servicing the Jots on which the manufactured 
homes are to be affixed (including the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and 
either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads). 

Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). The federal agency that, in addition to 
carrying out other functions, administers the National Flood Insurance Program. 

Flood or flooding. A general and temporary condition of partial or complete inundation of 
normally dry land from: [Also defined in FBC, 8, Section 1612.2] 

(1) The overflow of inland or tidal waters. 

(2) The unusual and rapid accumulation or runoff of surface waters from any source. 

Flood damage-resistant materials. Any construction material capable of withstanding direct 
and prolonged contact with floodwaters without sustaining any damage that requires more than 
cosmetic repair. [Also defined in FBC, 8, Section 1612.2.] 

Flood hazard area. The greater of the following two areas: [Also defined in F8C, 8, Section 
1612 2] 

(1) The area within a floodplain subject to a 1-percent or greater chance of flooding in any 
year. 

(2) The area designated as a flood hazard area on the community's flood hazard map, or 
otherwise legally designated. 

Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM). The official map of the community on which the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency has delineated both special flood hazard areas and the risk 
premium zones applicable to the community. [Also defined in FBC, B, Section 1612.2] 

Flood Insurance Study (FIS). The official report provided by the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency that contains the Flood Insurance Rate Map, the Flood Boundary and 
Floodway Map (if applicable), the water surface elevations of the base flood, and supporting 
technical data. [Also defined in F8C, B, Section 1612.2.] 

Floodplain Administrator. The office or position designated and charged with the 
administration and enforcement of this ordinance (may be referred to as the Floodplain 
Manager). 

Floodplain development permit or approval. An official document or certificate issued by the 

15 
ORDIN~~CE 2018-13 

20 



community, or other evidence of approval or concurrence, which authorizes performance of 
specific development activities that are located in flood hazard areas and that are determined to 
be compliant with this ordinance. 

Floodway. The channel of a river or other riverine watercourse and the adjacent land areas 
that must be resenved in order to discharge the base flood without cumulatively increasing the 
water surface elevation more than one (1) foot. [Also defined in FBC, B, Section 1612 2] 

Floodway encroachment analysis. An engineering analysis of the impact that a proposed 
encroachment into a floodway is expected to have on the floodway boundaries and base flood 
elevations; the evaluation shall be prepared by a qualified Florida licensed engineer using 
standard engineering methods and models. 

Florida Building Code. The family of codes adopted by the Florida Building Commission, 
including Florida Building Code, Building; Florida Building Code, Residential; Florida Building 
Code, Existing Building; Florida Building Code, Mechanical; Florida Building Code, Plumbing: 
Florida Building Code, Fuel Gas. 

Functionally dependent use. A use which cannot perform its intended purpose unless it is 
located or carried out in close proximity to water, including only docking facilities, port facilities 
that are necessary for the loading and unloading of cargo or passengers, and ship building and 
ship repair facilities; the term does not include long-term storage or related manufacturing 
facilities. 

Highest adjacent grade. The highest natural elevation of the ground surface prior to 
construction next to the proposed walls or foundation of a structure. 

Historic structure. Any structure that is determined eligible for the exception to the flood 
hazard area requirements of the Florida Building Code, Existing Building, Chapter++ J1 Historic 
Buildings. 

Letter of Map Change (LOMC). An official determination issued by FEMA that amends or 
revises an effective Flood Insurance Rate Map or Flood Insurance Study. Letters of Map 
Change include; 

Letter of Map Amendment (LOMA): An amendment based on technical data showing 
that a property was incorrectly included in a designated special flood hazard area. A 
LOMA amends the current effective Flood Insurance Rate Map and establishes that a 
specific property, portion of a property, or structure is not located in a special flood 
hazard area. 
Letter of Map Revision (LOMR); A revision based on technical data that may show 
changes to flood zones, flood elevations, special flood hazard area boundaries and 
floodway delineations, and other planimetric features. 
Letter of Map Revision Based on Fill (LOMR-F); A determination that a structure or 
parcel of land has been elevated by fill above the base flood elevation and is, therefore, 
no longer located within the special flood hazard area. In order to qualify for this 
determination, the fill must have been permitted and placed in accordance with the 
community's floodplain management regulations. 
Conditional Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR); A formal review and comment as to 
whether a proposed flood protection project or other project complies with the minimum 
NFIP requirements for such projects with respect to delineation of special flood hazard 
areas. A CLOMR does not revise the effective Flood Insurance Rate Map or Flood 

16 
ORDINANCE 2018-13 

21 



Insurance Study; upon submission and approval of certified as-built documentation, a 
Letter of Map Revision may be issued by FEMA to revise the effective FIRM. 

Light-duty truck. As defined in 40 C.F.R. 86.082-2, any motor vehicle rated at 8,500 pounds 
Gross Vehicular Weight Rating or less which has a vehicular curb weight of 6,000 pounds or 
less and which has a basic vehicle frontal area of 45 square feet or less, which is: 

(1) Designed primarily for purposes of transportation of property or is a derivation of such a 
vehicle, or 

(2) Designed primarily for transportation of persons and has a capacity of more than 12 
persons; or 

(3) Available with special features enabling off-street or off-highway operation and use. 

Lowest floor. The lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area of a building or structure, including 
basement, but excluding any unfinished or flood-resistant enclosure, other than a basement, 
usable solely for vehicle parking, building access or limited storage provided that such 
enclosure is not built so as to render the structure in violation of the non-elevation requirements 
of the Florida Bui/clin9 Code or ASCE 24. [Also defined in FBC, B, Section 1612 2] 

Manufactured home. A structure, transportable in one or more sections. which is eight (8) feet 
or more in width and greater than four hundred (400) square feet, and which is built on a 
permanent, integral chassis and is designed for use with or without a permanent foundation 
when attached to the required utilities. The term "manufactured home" does not include a 
"recreational vehicle" or "park trailer." [Also defined in 15C-1.01 01, F.A.C.] 

Manufactured home park or subdivision. A parcel (or contiguous parcels) of land divided 
into two or more manufactured home lots for rent or sale. 

Market value. The price at which a property will change hands between a willing buyer and a 
willing seller, neither party being under compulsion to buy or sell and both having reasonable 
knowledge of relevant facts. As used in this ordinance, the term refers to the market value of 
buildings and structures, excluding the land and other improvements on the parcel. Market 
value may be established by a qualified independent appraiser, Actual Cash Value 
(replacement cost depreciated for age and quality of construction), or tax assessment value 
adjusted to approximate market value by a factor provided by the Property Appraiser. 

New construction. For the purposes of administration of this ordinance and the flood resistant 
construction requirements of the Florida Building Code, structures for which the "start of 
construction" commenced on or after January 16, 1988and includes any subsequent 
improvements to such structures. 

New manufactured home park or subdivision. A manufactured home park or subdivision for 
which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured homes are to 
be affixed (including at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and 
either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads) is completed on or after January 16, 
1988}. 

Park trailer. A transportable unit which has a body width not exceeding fourteen (14) feet and 
which is built on a single chassis and is designed to provide seasonal or temporary living 
quarters when connected to utilities necessary for operation of installed fixtures and appliances. 
(Defined in section 320.01. F.S. 4BG-+.Q.1 01 F.A G-c] 

17 
ORDINANCE 2018-13 

22 



Recreational vehicle. A vehicle, including a park trailer, which is: [De'inod iA See section 
320.01ftt, FS.) 

(1) Built on a single chassis; 

(2) Four hundred (400) square feet or less when measured at the largest horizontal 
projection; 

(3) Designed to be self-propelled or permanently towable by a light-duty truck; and 

(4) Designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling but as temporary living quarters 
for recreational, camping, travel, or seasonal use. 

Special flood hazard area. An area in the floodplain subject to a 1 percent or greater chance of 
flooding in any given year. Special flood hazard areas are shown on FIRMs as Zone A, AO, 
A 1-A30, AE, A99, AH, V1-V30, VE or V. [Also defined in FBC, B Section 1612 2] 

Start of construction. The date of issuance of permits for new construction and substantial 
improvements to existff1g structures, provided the actual start of construction, repair, 
reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, placement, or other improvement is within 180 days of 
the date of the issuance. The actual start of construction means either the first placement of 
permanent construction of a building (including a manufactured home) on a site, such as the 
pouring of slab or footings, the installation of piles, the construction of columns. 

Permanent construction does not include land preparation (such as clearing, grading, or 
filling), the installation of streets or walkways, excavation for a basement, footings, piers, or 
foundations, the erection of temporary forms or the installation of accessory buildings such as 
garages or sheds not occupied as dwelling units or not part of the main buildings. For a 
substantial improvement, the actual "start of construction" means the first alteration of any wall, 
ceiling, floor or other structural part of a building, whether or not that alteration affects the 
external dimensions of the building. [Also defined in FBC, B Section 1612.2.] 

Substantial damage. Damage of any origin sustained by a building or structure whereby the 
cost of restoring the building or structure to its before-damaged condition would equal or exceed 
50 percent of the market value of the building or structure before the damage occurred. [Also 
defined in FBC. B Section 1612.2] 

Substantial improvement. Any repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, or other 
improvement of a building or structure, the cost of which equals or exceeds 50 percent of the 
market value of the building or structure before the improvement or repair is started. If the 
structure has incurred "substantial damage," any repairs are considered substantial 
improvement regardless of the actual repair work performed. The term does not, however, 
include either: [Also defined in FBC, B, Section 1612.2] 

(1) Any project for improvement of a building required to correct existing health, sanitary, or 
safety code violations identified by the building official and that are the minimum 
necessary to assure safe living conditions. 

(2) Any alteration of a historic structure provided the alteration will not preclude the 
structure's continued designation as a historic structure. [See Instructions and Notes] 

Variance. A grant of relief from the requirements of this ordinance, or the flood resistant 
construction requirements of the Florida Building Code, which permits construction in a manner 
that would not otherwise be permitted by this ordinance or the Florida Building Code. 

18 
ORDINANCE 2018-13 

23 



W atercourse. A river, creek, stream, channel or other topographic feature in, on, through, or 
over which water flows at least periodically. 

Sees. 106-222- 106-240. - Reserved. 

ARTICLE 3 FLOOD RESISTANT DEVELOPMENT 

DIVISION 1 BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES 

106-241 Design and construction of buildings, structures and facil ities exempt from the 
Florida Building Code. Pursuant to Section 106-82(b) of this ordinance, buildings, structures, 
and facilities that are exempt from the Florida Building Code, including substantial improvement or 
repair of substantial damage of such buildings, structures and facilities, shall be designed and 
constructed in accordance with the flood load and flood resistant construction requirements of 
ASCE 24. Structures exempt from the Florida Building Code that are not walled and roofed build ings 
shall comply with the requirements of Section 307 Article Ill , Division 7 of this ordinance. 

Sees. 106-242-106-260.- Reserved. 

DIVISION 2 SUBDIVISIONS 

106-261 Minimum requirements. Subdivision proposals, including proposals for manufactured 
home parks and subdivisions, shall be reviewed to determine that: 

(1) Such proposals are consistent with the need to minimize flood damage and will be 
reasonably safe from flood ing; 

(2) All public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electric, communications, and water 
systems are located and constructed to minimize or e liminate flood damage; and 

(3) Adequate drainage is provided to reduce exposure to flood hazards; in Zones AH and 
AO, adequate drainage paths shall be provided to guide floodwaters around and away 
from proposed structures. 

106·262 Subdivision plats. Where any portion of prop-o-sed subdivisions, including 
manufactured home parks and subdivisions, lies within a flood hazard area, the following shall 
be req uired: 

(1) Delineation of flood hazard areas, floodway boundaries and flood zones, and design 
flood elevations, as appropriate, shall be shown on preliminary p lats and final plats; 

(2) Where the subd ivision has more than 50 lots or is larger than 5 acres and base flood 
elevations are not included on the FIRM, the base flood elevations determined in 
accordance with Section 1 06-112(1) ~of this ordinance; and 

(3) Compliance with the site improvement and utilities requirements of Article 3, Division 3 
of this ordinance. 

Sees. 106-263- 106-290. - Reserved. 

DIVISION 3 SITE IMPROVEMENTS, UTILITIES AND LIMITATIONS 

106-291 Minimum requirements. All proposed new development shall be reviewed to 
determine that: 

19 
ORDI NANCE 2 018-13 

24 



(1) Such proposals are consistent with the need to minimize flood damage and will be 
reasonably safe from flooding: 

(2) All public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electric, communications, and 1vater 
systems are located and constructed to minimize or eliminate flood damage; and 

(3) Adequate drainage is provided to reduce exposure to flood hazards; in Zones AH 
and AO, adequate drainage paths shall be provided to guide floodwaters around and 
away from proposed structures. 

106-292 Sanitary sewage facilities All new and replacement sanitary sewage facilities, private 
sewage treatment plants (including all pumping stations and collector systems), and on-site 
waste disposal systems shall be designed in accordance with the standards for on site sewage 
treatment and disposal systems in Chapter 64E-6, F.AC. and ASCE 24 Chapter 7 to minimize 
or eliminate infiltration of floodwaters into the facilities and discharge from the facilities into flood 
waters, and impairment of the facilities and systems. 

106-293 Water supply facilities. All new and replacement water supply facilities shall be 
designed in accordance with the water well construction standards in Chapter 62-532.500, 
F.A.C. and ASCE 24 Chapter 7 to minimize or eliminate infiltration of floodwaters into the 
systems. 

106-294 Limitations on sites in regulatory flooclways. No development, including but not 
limited to site improvements, and land disturbing activity involving fill or regrading, shall be 
authorized in the regulatory floodway unless the floodway encroachment analysis required in 
Section 1 06-113(1) of this ordinance demonstrates that the proposed development or land 
disturbing activity will not result in any increase in the base flood elevation. 

106-295 Limitations on placement of fill. Subject to the limitations of this ordinance, fill shall 
be designed to be stable under conditions of flooding including rapid rise and rapid drawdown of 
floodwaters, prolonged inundation, and protection against flood-related erosion and scour. In 
addition to these requirements, if intended to support buildings and structures (Zone A only), fill 
shall comply with the requirements of the Floricla Builcling Cocle. 

Sees. 106-296-106-310.- Reserved. 

DIVISION 4 MANUFACTURED HOMES 

1 06·311 General. All manufactured homes installed in flood hazard areas shall be installed by 
an installer that is licensed pursuant to section 320.8249, F.S., and shall comply with the 
requirements of Chapter 15C-1, F.A.C. and the requirements of this ordinance. If located 
seaward of the coastal construction control line, all manufactured homes shall comply with the 
more restrictive of the applicable requirements. 

106-312 Foundations. All new manufactured homes and replacement manufactured homes 
installed in flood hazard areas shall be installed on permanent, reinforced foundations that are 
designed in accordance with the foundation requirements of the Florida Building Cocie 
Resiclential Section R322.2 and this ordinance. Foundations fomanufactured homes subject to 
Section 1 06-314(2) of this ordinance are permitted to be reinforced piers or other foundation 
elements of at least equivalent strength. 

20 
ORDINAKCE 2018-13 

25 



106-313 Anchoring. All new manufactured homes and replacement manufactured homes shall 
be installed using methods and practices which minimize flood damage and shall be securely 
anchored to an adequately anchored foundation system to resist flotation, collapse or lateral 
movement. Methods of anchoring include, but are not limited to, use of over-the-top or frame 
ties to ground anchors. This anchoring requirement is in addition to applicable state and local 
anchoring requirements for wind resistance. 

106-314 Elevation. Manufactured homes that are placed, replaced, or substantially improved 
shall comply with Section 106-314(1) or (2) or of this ordinance, as applicable. 

(1) General elevation requirement. Unless subject to the requirements of subsection (2) of this 
section, all manufactured homes that are placed, replaced, or substantially improved on sites 
located (a) outside of a manufactured home park or subdivision: (b) in a new manufactured 
home park or subdivision; (c) in an expansion to an existing manufactured home park or 
subdivision; or (d) in an existing manufactured home park or subdivision upon which a 
manufactured home has incurred "substantial damage" as the result of a flood, shall be elevated 
such that the bottom of the frame is at or above the elevation required, as applicable to the flood 
hazard area, in the Floricla Building Code, Residential Section R322.2 (Zone A). 

(2) Elevation requirement for certain existing manufactured home parks and subdivisions. 
Manufactured homes that are not subject to subsection (1) of this section, including 
manufactured homes that are placed, replaced, or substantially improved on sites located in an 
existing manufactured home park or subdivision, unless on a site where substantial damage as 
result of flooding has occurred, shall be elevated such that either the: 

a. Bottom of the frame of the manufactured home is at or above the elevation required in 
the Florida Building Code, Residential Section R322.2 (Zone A); or 

b. Bottom of the frame is supported by reinforced piers or other foundation elements of at 
least equivalent strength that are not less than 36 inches in height above grade. 

106-315 Enclosures. Ftllly enclosed areas below elevated manufactured homes shall comply 
with the requirements of the Florida Building Code, Residential Section R3222_ for such 
enclosed areas. 

106-316 Utility equipment. Utility equipment that serves manufactured homes, including 
electric, heating, ventilation, plumbing, and air conditioning equipment and other service 
facilities, shall comply with the requirements of the Florida Building Code, Residential Section 
R322. 

Sees. 106-317-106-330.- Reserved. 

DIVISION 5 RECREATIONAL VEHICLES AND PARK TRAILERS 

106-331 Temporary placement. Recreational vehicles and park trailers placed temporarily in 
flood hazard areas shall: 

( 1) Be on the site for fewer than 180 consecutive days; or 

(2) Be fully licensed and ready for highway use, which means the recreational vehicle or 
park model is on wheels or jacking system, is attached to the site only by quick
disconnect type utilities and security devices, and has no permanent attachments such 
as additions, rooms, stairs, decks and porches. 

21 
ORDIN~~CE 2018-13 

26 



106-332 Permanent placement. Recreationa l vehicles and park trai lers that do not meet the 
limitat ions in Section 106-331 of this ordinance for temporary placement shall meet the 
requirements of Article Ill , Division 4 of this ordinance for manufactured homes. 

Sees. 106-333- 106-350.- Reserved. 

DIVISION 6 TANKS 

106-351 Undergro und tanks. Underground tanks in flood hazard a reas shall be anchored to 
prevent f lotation , collapse or lateral movement resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic 
loads during conditions of the design flood , including the effects of buoyancy assuming the tank 
is em pty. 

106-352 Above-ground tanks, not elevated. Above-ground tanks that do not meet the 
eleva tion requirements of Section 106-353 of this ord inance shall be permitted in flood hazard 
areas provided the tanks are anchored or otherwise designed and constructed to prevent 
flotation, collapse or lateral movement resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads during 
condi tions of the design flood, including the effects of buoyancy assuming the tank is empty and 
the effects of flood-borne debris. 

106-353 Above-ground tanks, elevated. Above-ground tanks in flood hazard areas shall be 
attached to and elevated to or above the design flood elevation on a supporting structure that is 
designed to prevent flotation , collapse or lateral movement during conditions of the design flood. 
Tank-supporting structures shall meet the foundation requirements of the applicable flood 
hazard area. 

106-354 Tank inlets and vents. Tank inlets, fill openings, outlets and vents shall be: 

(1) At or above the design flood elevation or fitted with covers designed to prevent the inflow 
of f loodwater or outflow of the contents of the tanks during conditions of the design flood ; 
and 

(2) Anchored to prevent lateral movement resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic 
~oads, including the effects of buoyancy, during condiHor.s of the design flood. 

Sees. 106-355- 106-370.- Reserved . 

DIVISION 7 OTHER DEVELOPMENT 

1 06·371 General requirements for other development. All development, including man-made 
changes to improved or unimproved real estate for which specific provisions are not specified in 
this ordinance or the Florida Building Code, shall: 

(1) Be located and constructed to minimize flood damage; 

(2) Meet the limitations of Section 106-294 of this ordinance if located in a regulated 
floodway; 

(3) Be anchored to prevent flotation , collapse or lateral movement resulting from hydrostatic 
loads, including the effects of buoyancy, during conditions of the design flood; 

(4) Be constructed of flood damage-resistant materials; and 

(5) Have mechanical , plumbing, and electrical systems above the design flood elevation or 

22 
ORDIN~~CE 2018-13 

27 



meet the requirements of ASCE 24, except that minimum electric service required to 
address life safety and electric code requirements is permitted below the design flood 
elevation provided it conforms to the provisions of the electrical part of building code for 
wet locations. 

106-372 Fences in regulated floodways. Fences in regulated floodways that have the 
potential to block the passage of floodwaters, such as stockade fences and wire mesh fences, 
shall meet the limitations of Section 106-294 of this ordinance. 

106-373 Retaining walls, sidewalks and driveways in regulated floodways. Retaining walls 
and s·ldewalks and driveways that involve the placement of fill in regulated floodways shall meet 
the limitations of Section 106-294 of this ordinance. 

106-37 4 Roads and watercourse crossings in regulated floodways. Roads and 
watercourse crossings, including roads, bridges, culverts, low-water crossings and similar 
means for vehicles or pedestrians to travel from one side of a watercourse to the other side, that 
encroach into regulated floodways shall meet the limitations of Section 106-294 of this 
ordinance. Alteration of a watercourse that is part of a road or watercourse crossing shall meet 
the requirements of Section 1 06-113(3) of this ordinance. 

Sees. 106-375-106-400. ·Reserved. 

SECTION 3. FISCAL IMPACT STATEMENT. 
In terms of design, plan application review, construction and inspection of buildings and 
structures, the cost impact as an overall average is negligible in regard to the local technical 
amendments because all development has been subject to the requirements of the local 
floodplain management ordinance adopted for participation in the National Flood Insurance 
Program. In terms of lower potential for flood damage, there will be continued savings and 
benefits to consumers. 

SECTION 4. APPLICABILITY. 
For the purposes of jurisdictional applicability, this ordinance shall apply in the City of 
Edgewood. This ordinance shall apply to all applications for development, including building 
permit applications and subdivision proposals, submitted on or after the effective date of this 
ordinance. 

SECTION 5. REPEALER. 
Any and all ordinances and regulations in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of 
any conflict. This ordinance specifically repeals and replaces Chapter 106 of the City of 
Edgewood Code of Ordinances. 

SECTION 6. INCLUSION INTO THE CODE OF ORDINANCES. 
It is the intent of the City Council of the City of Edgewood that the provisions of this ordinance 
shall become and be made a part of the City of Edgewood Code of Ordinances, and that the 
sections of this ordinance may be renumbered or relettered and the word "ordinance" may be 
changed to "section," "article," "regulation," or such other appropriate word or phrase in order to 
accomplish such intentions. 

SECTION 7. SEVERABILITY. 
If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is, for any reason, 
declared by the courts to be unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity 

23 
ORDINANCE 2018-13 

28 



of the ordinance as a whole, or any part thereof, other than the pari so declared 

SECTION 8. EFFECTIVE DATE. 
This ordinance shall take effect on _________ _ 

PASSED on first reading December 20, 2018. 
PASSED and ADOPTED in regular session, with a quorum present and voting, by the City 
Cour&cil of the City of Edgewood, upon second and final reading this ______ _ 

John Dowless, Council President 

ATTEST: 

Be a L. Meeks 
City Clerk 

Approved as to form: 

D. Andrew Smith, III 
City Attomey 

2< 
ORDINA-~CE 2018-13 

29 



1 ORDii'\Ai'\CE 2018-16 

Ai'l ORDli'IAJ'\CE OF THE CITY COU!'ICIL OF THE CITY 
3 OF EDGEWOOD, FLORIDA, ADOPTI!'IG THE 2018/2019 
4 FIVE YEAR CAPITAL IMPROYEL\IEJ'\T PROGRA:\1 
5 AJ'\i'\UAL UPDATE; PROVIDING FOR LEGISLATIVE 
6 FINDii'\GS; PROYIDii'\G FOR SEVERABILITY; 
7 PROYIDII\'G FOR EXCLUSIO:X FR0:\1 CODIFICATIO!\;; 
8 Al\'D PROVIDii'\G FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE-

9 WHEREAS, Section 163.3177(3)(a), Florida Statutes, requires that local go\umnent 
10 comprehensive plans contain a capital improvements element designed to consider the need for 
11 and the location of public facilities; and 

12 WHEREAS, Section l63.3177(3)(b), Florida Statutes, requires that local govenm1ents 
13 review the capital improvements element on an annual basis, and provides that modifications to 
14 update the five year capital improvements schedule may be accomplished by ordinance; and 

15 WHEREAS, "capital improvement" generally means physical assets constructed or 
16 purchased to provide, improve, or replace a public facility, typically large scale, high in cost, and 
17 may require multi-year financing; and 

18 WHEREAS, Section 163.3177(3)(a)4, florida Statutes, requires that projects necessary to 
19 achin·e and maintain adopted levels of service for the five-year planning period be included in the 
-:>0 capital improvement schedule. 

21 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF 
22 EDGEWOOD AS FOLLOWS: 

23 SECTION 1: RECITALS/INTENT. The recitals set f01ih above are true and correct and 
24 constitute legislative findings of the City Council. 

25 SECTION 2: AMENDMENT TO THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT SCHEDULE. The 
26 Capital Improvement Program Annual Update is hereby adopted as set forth in Exhibit "A," 
27 attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 

28 SECTION 3: EXCLUSION FROM CITY CODE/CODIFICATION. it is the intent of the 
29 City of Edgewood City Council that the provisions of this Ordinance shall not be codified into the 
30 City of Edgewood Code of Ordinances. 

31 SECTION 4: EFFECTIVE DATE. The effective date of this Ordinance shall be 
32 immediately upon adoption. 

33 Sl~CTIOi'\ 5: CONFLICTS. This ordinance shall supersede any ordinances in conflict 
34 herewith to the extent that such conflict exists. 

35 SECTION 6: SEVERABILITY. If any part of this ordinance is found to be invalid, 
36 preempted, or otherwise superseded, the remainder shall nevertheless be given full force and effect 
37 to the extent permitted by the severance of such invalid, preempted, or superseded part. 

38 
1 

ORDINANCE 2018·16 

30 



39 PASSED ON FIRST READING THIS 20th DAY OF December, 2018. 

·a 

41 PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS ____ DAY OF ___ , 2019. 

42 

43 

44 

45 

46 
47 

CITY OF EDGEWOOD, FLORIDA 

CITY COUNCIL 

48 J olm Dowless, Council President 
49 ATTEST: 
50 
51 
52 Bea Meeks, City Clerk 

z 
ORDINANCE 2018-16 

31 



CITY OF EDGEWOOD 
Appointment Information Form 

This Appointment Information Form, when completed and filed with the City Clerk, is a PUBLIC 
RECORD under Chapter 119, F.S. and therefore, is open to public inspection by any person. 

You are responsible to keep the information on this form current. Please call or write the City Clerk to 
advise of any changes. 

In submitting this application for a City of Edgewood Board, I understand and acknowledge that if 
appointed, I will serve at the pleasure of City Council and may be removed from service in accordance 
with the City Code. 

Name: R van Santurri 
Address: 1270 Harbour Island Rd. Edgewood FL 32809 
Email: rsanturri@allendver.com 
Phone: I Cell: I 407-4'i9-0R79 
Occu pation: Attorney 
Employer: Allen Dver. Doooelt & Gilchrist P.A. 
Position: Shareholder I How long: I 14 VP.~ r.c: 

Have you ever held a professional or business license or certificate 
Yes: Law license; .t<lqnda Har I No: I 
If yes, please provide the title, issue date and issuing authority. If any disciplinary action has been taken, 
please state the type and date of the action taken. 

Revised 4/1 /08 
405 Larue Avenue, Edgewood, Florida, 32809-3406 

Phone: 407-851-2920 I Fax: 407-851-7361 
www.edgewood-fl.gov 

I of2 

32 



License/certific;;te title ~--~~sue Date Issuing Discipli~- Actio-n/Date~-~ 
1------~- --~~--------- --~---'---- Authority ___l___ _ __j !----------): ____ ~_-· -_ -_ -_ -_ ~---:--_ --~----~-1---~- ----1 
L_ _____ j__ _____ ~ _____ _l _____ ~ 

Please prioritize Board (s) prefen·ed: I 
-P-la-n-ni-ng&--Z:c--on--cic-n_g_: ---·--T-1 =="--==:=...::.lccO=c-=th'-'e"'r:'--===:;----~-------~ 

I Are you a City of Edge\Yood I Yes: X 
I 

:\o: 
resident? 

I Arc you a registered \'Oter? Yes: 
~-x 

I I Ro: 
Do you own property in I Yes: i 1\o: 
Edgewood? X 

I ~ 
I Yes: 

I 
Are you currently serving on a No: X 
City Board? 
If yes, which Board and since I Yes: 

I 
I C:o: N/A 

wher1: 
Have you eYer senTd on a City I Yes: 

: 
~ 

I 
j :\o X 

Board? I 
~ 

Are you currently serving on a I Yes L 
:\o: X 

Board, Authority, or Commission 
for another go\'ernmental 
agency? 
If yes. what Board, etc and since N/A 
when? 

Additional conm1ents: 

Revised 411/03 
405 Larue Avenue, Edgewood, Florida, 32809-3406 

Phone: 407-851-2920 I Fax: 407-851-7361 
\WN/ .edge\VOOd-fi.QOV 

-

I 

I 

~ ~-

I 

I 

2 of2 

33 



TO: 

CC: 

Bea Meeks, City C lerk 

City Council 

FROM : Sandy Riffle, Deputy City C lerk 

Februa1-y 1, 2019 Da te: 

SUBJECT: T he W aterfront - Variance 2018-07,2018-08,2018-09 and 2018-10 

The following inf01mation is provided regarding proposed Variances 2018-07,2018-08,2018-09 ancl2018-10 
for The Waterfront located at 4201 S. Orange Avenue. Included for your review is the following information 
received by City Hall. 

• Staff repori from Planner Ellen Hardgrove dated January 24, 2019 for Variance applications 2018-
07,2018-08,2018-09, and 2018-10. 
Staff report from CPH elated August 31, 2019 (pertaining to Variances 2018-07, 08 and 09). 
Variance applications 2018-07, 2018-08, 2018-09 and 2018-10 with corTesponding letters from 
Civil Corp Engineering. 

• Plans dated December 3, 2018 
Notice of Public Hearing dated August 24, 2018 for Variance applications 2018-07,2018-08, and 
20 18-09. 

• Notice of Public Hearing dated December 26, 2018 for Variance application 2018-10. 

Notices of Public Hearing letters were sent to those property owners within 500 feet of the subject 
property. There were 21 Notices provided by U.S. Mail. No objections or comments were received 
at City Hall as of the date of this memo. 

Variance 2018-08 was withdrawn and Variance 2018-10 was given a continuance. With the 
stated conditions, P&Z found the Code criteria for approving variances (included below) have 
been met for the Parking/Road Buffer ·width Variance (Variance 2018-07) and the Setback from 
Normal High VVater E levation Variance (Variance 2018-09). 

1. Variance 2018-07 was submitted to allow a minimum buffer of 2.38 feet in lieu of the required 7 
feet [Sec 114-4(1 )(a)(l)]. 

The Board Members agreed that the applicant is able to meet the standards of the Edgewood 
Central District (ECD) as the partial wall already exists, and that with the site plan, the applicant 
can capture the intent of the landscape plans that was presented. 

34 



Board jvfember Rayburn moved to recommend approral of Variance 2014-07 with the 
recommendations of appro)'(llfrom the Planner's staff report; second by Board k fember Gragg. 
The Motion passed (3/0). 

2. Variance 2018-08 was submitted to allovv one (1) shade tree for every 120 linear feet in lieu of 
one (1) shade tree for each 40 linear feet, or fraction thereof. Sec 114-4(1 )( a)(2). 

This application was withdrawn as the applicant is able to meet the requirements; however, the 
application was advertised and appears on the agenda for housekeeping purposes. Application 
withdrawn; no vote. 

3. Vaiance 2018-09 was submitted to allow a building setback of 20 feet from the Normal High 
\Vater Elevation (NHWE) in lieu of the required 50 feet [Sec 134-348(e)]. 

Out of concerns for the quality and protection of Lake Jennie Jewel, the Board decided to 
recommend approval ofVariance 2018-09, with conditions. 

Board JV/ember Raybum moved to recommend approval of Variance 2018-09 with three 
conditions. 1. Any runoff caused by the constmction must be captured and treated by 
stornn vater management on site. 2. The site plan must include an additional layer of protection, 
suc lt as curbing, to the north and east side of the parking lot. 3. The applicant must present a 
plan for containing and cleaning waste deposited by patrons into the lake. Second by Board 
Member Gragg. The Jl!Jotion passed (310). 

4. Variance 2018-10 was submitted to allow for 1 parking space for each 4 seats in lieu of 1 
parking space for each 4 seats plus one space for each 75 square feet of floor area to provide for 
patron use which does not contain fixed seats [Sec 134-605 (a) (19)]. 

The applicant requested to come back to continue the discussion of this.application. 

Board M ember Gragg moved that Varian ce 2018-10 be continued to a future date, to be 
determined; Second by Board Nfember Rayburn. The Jl1otion passed (310) 

35 



TO: 
XC: 

FROM: 
DATE: 
SUBJECT: 

City Council 

405 Larue Avenue - Edgewood, Florida 32809-3406 

(407) 851-2920 

Bea Meeks, City Clerk 
Sandy Riffle, Assistant City Clerk 
Drew Smith, City Attorney 

Dav id Mahler, P.E., City Engineering Consultant 
Allen C. Lane, Jr., P.E., CPH Engineering 
Ellen Hardgrove, ATCP, City Plann ing Consultant 
January 24, 2019 
Waterfront Variance Request Scheduled on February 19, 20 19 Council Agenda 

INTRODUCTION 

Property Location: Waterfront, 420 I South Orange Avenue (see Exhibit 1) 

Exhibit 1 

36 



Recpest: The applicant is requesting Council's cons~dcration of two Ysriances to allo\\ 
for the expansion of the existing restaurant. 

Variance 2018-07- Parking/Road Buffet· Width 
Variance 2018-09- Setback from Nonnal High Water EkYation 

Property 01mer: Loch Investments LLC 

Agent: Stephen Allen, PE CiYilCorp Engineering. Inc. 

Tax Parcel: 12-23-29-0000-00-03 7 

Existing Zoning: C1 

l'vlinimum C I Setbacks: Front -25 feet 
Side- 0 feet 
Rear- 50 feet from Normal High \Vater 

Existing on site: Restaurant and billboard 

Surrvunding uses: North -Office 
South Unde\'eloped 
West - Vanbarry's restaurant, across Orange Ave. 
East - Lake Jennie Jewel, single family residential along the east shore 

Surmunding Zoning: North - PO 
South C I 

West C3 
East RIAA 

Futtwe Land Use: Commercial 

37 



BACKGROU'\D/REQUEST DESCRIPTIOl'\ 
At their meeting January 14,2019, the Planning and Zoning Board (P&Z) acted on a request for t\\·o 

Yarimces for the Waterfront property. The text below summarizes the requested Hriances and P&Z's 

reco~1mendation to Council. 

Variance 2018-07- Parking/Road Buffer Width 

The applicant is requesting a variance in Section 114-4(l)(a)(l) to provide a minimum t\\o (2) feet 

wide landscape buffer between a Yehicular use area and public right-of-\\ay in lieu of a minimum of 7 

feet. 

P&Z recommends approval of this request with the following conditions: 

• A wall shall be constructed along the perimeter of the parking lot within the parking/road 

buffer. 

• The height of the wall shall be 4 feet above the road grade, opaque, and with a brick fa9ade 

facing Orange A venue. 

• Brick columns spaced at a maximum of 20 feet on center shall be incorporated into the wall 

design, with the maximum height of the columns being 4 feet 9 inches. 

• The location of the wall shall meet the standards outlined in the most cun·ent FOOT Florida 

Green Book. 

The pedestrian access sidewalk through the wall, connecting to the public sidewalk, shall be 

ADA compliant. 

The understory/small trees in the buffer as required by Code shall be a minimum of seven feet 

in height and have at least a three-inch caliper at planting. 

The shrubs shall be at least 24 inches high at planting of a species capable of growing to 36 

inches in height within 18 months, and spaced to achieve a continuous hedge at maturity. The 

minimum height that the hedge shall be maintained is 36 inches, with the maximum equal to the 

height of the wall. 

In addition to the required hedge and trees, low-maintenance, drought tolerant ground cover 

shall be used for buffer areas without hedges and trees or pavement. 

Variance 2018-09- Setback from Normal High Water Elevation 

The applicant is requesting the building setback distance from the normal water elevation of the 

adjacent water body be reduced from 50 feet to 20 feet. 

P&Z recommends approval of this request ,,-ith the follmving corrditions. 

Any nmoff caused by onsite development must be captured and treated by the onsite storm water 

management system. 

The site plan must show an additional layer of lake protection, such as curbing the parking lot 

along its north and east sides. 

• The applicant must present a plan to prevent patron trash and debris from getting into the lake. 

Waieifronl iQrim;c:es Plm:mng StaB' Reporl hrwc7i) 24, 2()!9 Peg,; 3 of 4 

38 



COl\ CL USIO:\' 
With the stated conditions, P&Z found the Code criteria for approving variances (included below) 
have been met for the Parking/Road Buffer Width Variance (Variance 20 I 8-07) and the Setback fi"om 

l\ormal High Water Elevation Variance (Variance 201 8-09). 

CRlTERIA FOR APPROVAL 
Variances are allowed where there are practical difficulties or unnecessary hardships in complying 
with the strict letter of the land development regulations. Per Section 134-10~(3), prior to 

recommending apprm·ai of any variance, P&Z and City Council shall find: 

I. That special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the Janel, structure, or 
bui !ding involved and which are not applicable to other lands, structures or buildings in the same 

zoning district; 

2. That the special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the applicant; 

3. That approval of the variance requested will not confer on the applicant any special privilege 
that is denied by this chapter to other lands, buildings or structures in the same zoning district; 

4. That literal interpretation of the provisions contained in this chapter would depri1·c the applicant 
of rights commonly enjoyed by other properties in the same zoning district under the terms of 
this chapter and would work unnecessary and undue hardship on the applicant: 

5. That the variance approved is the minimum variance that \\ill make possible the reasonable use 
of the land, building or structure; and, 

6. That approval of the variance will be in harmony with the general intent and purpose of this 
chapter and that such variance will not be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental 
to the public welfare. 

1:-·a121jront l(1ricu:ces Planning S!c~FfReport Ja11uary 24, 10!9 PCi.?e 4 of 4 

39 



August31, 2018 

JH7 f<~s! Robinson St 
Odandv, FL 32301 

Fh:r:le 407 425.(~52 
F?.A. 4ij7" 61S 1(r3,j 

Ms. Sandy Repp 
Administrative Assistant 
City of Edgewood 
405 La rue Avenue 
Edgewood, FL 32809-34 06 

RE: 4201 S Orange Avenue- Variance review letter 
CPH project number E7601 

Dear Ms. Repp; 

We are in receipt of the revised City of Edgewood Application for Variance's and the Site Plan for the 
Waterfront Restaurant located at the above address. The plan and applications are dated August 17, 
2018. This appl ication is in response to our previous letter dated August 6, 2018. The applican: is 
submitting three variance appl ications to address the following items: 

Landscape buffer - Sec 114-4(1 )(a)(1) 
Tree placement - Sec 114-4(1 )(a)(2) 
Building setback from the NHWE- Sec 134-348 

The applicant has provided narrative for three different requests. We have reviewed the plan sheet and 
Vari3nce Appl ications and compared the information provided to the Town Code Ordinance for 
conformance to the requirements for variance approval, Sec 134-1 04(3)(b), numbers 1 through 6 and 
offer our comments below: 

Landscape buffer variance request: 
The applicant is requesting a reduction in the landscape buffer width from 7 feet (minimum) to a width of 
less t han 7 feet. Per the plans, the buffer will be between 3.98 feet and 2.38 feet in width along the entire 
frontage of the site. We have reviewed the narrative and the submitted plan sheet as well as visited the 
site previously. The narrative addresses the variance requirement items from section 134-104. 
Based on the existing conditions, the submitied plan sheet and the response to the narrative criteria, we 
do not have an objection to the variance request. · 

L<:mdscape t ree and landscape planting requirement variance reouest: 
The applicant is requesting a reduction in the shade tree planting from one shade tree every 40 feet to 
one shade t ree every 120 feet adjacent to the public street right-of-way. Per the plans, the designed 
landscape buffer along the f rontage of the site will vary between 3.98 feet and 2.38 feet in width. We 
have reviewed the narrative and the submitted plan sheet. The narrative addresses the variance 
requirement items from section 134-104. 
Based on the existing conditions, the layout for the additional parking, the entrance drive to the site and 
the remaining open space, we do not have an objection to the variance request. 
The applicant will need to provide a plan sheet depicting the proposed location of the shade trees, and 
the locations of the existing trees on site, with the variance request. Based on the plan sheet, 
approximately 8 shade trees will be required, if all were planted along the frontage of the site as called for 
in the City code. 

Setback from normal water elevation of adjacent water body variance request: 
T he applicant is requesting the building setback distance from the normalv1ater elevation of the adjacent 
water body be reduced from 50 feet to 20 feet. The existing building on site is less than 50 feet from the 
normal h.igh water line shown on the plan. 
We received a copy of a topographic survey showing the location of the NHWE and the 1 00-year flood 
lines. Per the survey, the existing building and the proposed parking lot a1d building improvements are 

6 
40 



outside the 1 00-yea r flood line. Based on the copy of the plan sheet, we do not have an objection to the 
va·rance request. A copy of the suNey will be required to be provided to the City for the:r records. We 
a l ~o r equ::e i"lcluding the suNey information on the Site Plan for clarity. 

Based o n conversatklns with the Engineer and the Town, the site meets the minimum parKing 
reGui remenls for the number of proposed seats for the restaurant property. We have no objections to 
apporoving the plans. We do recommend the City require the Owner to provide an Affidavit stating the 
palrons a re allowed to be sea:ed or occupy the designa'ed seating (patro'l use) a reas. The plans need to 
spacif ical ly identify the patron use areas and identify areas thai do not include fixed seating areas . As 
nO:ed above, the parking count is based only on the fixed seating areas and a small portion of the open 
area The parking count d0es not include all the open space on the property. The affidavit also needs to 
stat€ that the Owner will apply for a Special Exception Permit for any special events or activities hosted 
by the restaurant. 

Firally , we reviewed the proposed location of the parking lot and the City Land Development Code to 
verify the allowable setback dist2nce from the Normal High Water Elevation to the edge of the parking lot. 
We s peci'ically looked at Section 134 of the code for setback requiremen:s. There is no specific 
language for setbacks for parking lots from the NHWE. In other sections of the code, there is a required 
setback for swimming pool decks from the NHWE. li v1e applied the rules for pool deck setback, the 
m inim urn distance the parking lot may be constructed is 15 feet from the NHWE. The plans show the 
proposed parking to be 10 feet from the NHWE. This may be a decision the City will need to address 
during construction plan review. At a minimum, during construction plan design, 'Ne recommend the 
design engineer design the parking lot to slope from the edge of the paved su rface and t owards the 
cent er. of the parking lot or provide curbing along the edge of the parking lot and a curb inlet to catch the 
runoff. Either option will allow the runoif to be captured in lieu oi sheet flowing off the parking area and 
directhy into the lake, which is not to be allowed. This can be addressed during the design plan submittal. 

As not ed above, ·we do not have any objections to approving the requested variances, as submitted. 

Sincerely, 
CPH, Inc. 

Allen €. Lane, Jr., P.E. 
Project eng ineer 

CC: David Mahler, P.E., CPH 
Fi le 

JJ:\E7601\Civii\Documents\Letter\4201 S Orange Avenue - Wateriront Variance Application approval letter 8-31 -
18.docx 

7 
41 



l Lf 

tUG I 7 2018 

en Yo;; r nc 
. , '! 
~u ~s 1'r. ; r~ · () 

APPUCATION FOR VARIANCE 

Reference : City of Edgewood Code of Ordinances, Section 126-588 
REQUIRED FEE: $350 RESI DENTIAL $750 COMMERCIAL 

(+Applicable Pass-Through Fees - Ordinance 2013-01) 
Please note this fee is non ·refundable 

I 

. ' r ' . 
..... PLANNING AND ZONING M EETING DATE: 

CITY COUNCIL M EETI NG DATE: 

IMPORTANT: A COMPLETE application with ali required attachments and ten (10) copies must be submitted to the City 
Clerk __ days before the next Planning & Zoning meetings. No application shall be deemed accepted unless it is 
complete and paid for. 

Notarized letter of authorization from Owner MUST be submitted if application is fi led by anyone other than property 
owner. 

Please type or p rint. Complete careful ly, answering each question and attaching all necessary documentation and 
additional pages as necessary. 

Appl icant's Name: 
Stephen Al len, P.E. 

Owner's Name: Loch Investments, LLC 
Address: 630 N. Wymore Rd, #310, Maitland FL 32751 Address: 

Phone Number: 
407·516·0437 Phone Number: 

407·963·6978 

Fax: Fax: 

Email: Email: I ryan.stepup@gmail.com sallen@civilcorpeng.com 

Legal Description: 
See attached. 

Zoned: C-1 

Location: 4201 5. Orange Avenue, Orlando FL 32806 

Tract Size: 3.37 Acre 

City section of the Zoning Code f rom which Sec 114·4(1)(a){1) 
Variance is requested : 

Request: 2.38 feet in lteu of 7 feet 
I 

Exist ing on Site: 2.38 feet 

Th e apphca nth ere by states that th1s request for Vanance does not v1olate any deed restmt1ons on the property. 
Application must be signed by the legal owner, not agent, unl ess copy of power of attorney is attached. 

405 Larue Avenue, Edgewood, Florida, 32809-3406 
Phone: 407-851-2920 I Fax: 407-851 -7361 

\WNt.edgewood-fl.gov 

8 

Page 2 of4 

42 



To justi fy this variance, applicant must demonstrate the following : 

1. Tha t special condition and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land, structure or 
building involved and which are not applicable to other lands, structures or building in the same 
zoning classification 
2. the special conditions and circumstances do no result from the action of the app!icant 
3. l iteral interpretation or enforcement of the provisions of the Ordinance would deprive the app~ ican' 
of rigfJ ts commonly enjoyed by other properties in the same zoning classifica tion under the terms 
of the Ordinance 
4. the variance, if authorized, will represent the minimum variance that wil afford relief and will 
represent the least modification possible for the regulation at issue 
5. the variance sought wi ll not authorize or extend any non-conforming use or other non-conformity 
vvith respect to the land or structures in questions 
6. the granting of the variance will be in harmony with the general intent and purpose of this 
Ordinance, \'till not be injurious to the area involved, or surrounding properties, and wi ll no 
au thorize a use of the property not permitted by its zoning classification 
7. the variance sought will be consistent with the Edgewood Comprehensive Plan 

Applicant must agree that: 

1. In granting any variance, the City may prescribe appropriate conditions and safeguards in 
conformity with the Ordinances, and any regulations enacted under i ts authority. Violation of such 
conditions and safeguards, when made a part of the terms under which the variance is granted 
shall be deemed a violation of Edgewood ordinances . 

I A GREE: I ~z I DISAGREE: I I 
2. The variance recommended by the Planning and Zoning Board and approved by the City Council 

shalt GJ:.)Jire- irr 1'2' montii'S iw c,o:;c;rdaric:E: wlth Chapter 134-104 (3){e ). ) 
.---::;:1 

I AGREE: I ""~_,.~ l DISAGREE: I I 
The applicant hereby states )h~ the auuve request for Variance does not violate any deed restrictions on 
the property. - I 

Applicant's Signature: ~~ ... I Date: I e , & Jowt~ 
Applicant's Printed Name: _./" S1 ~Ptiai ftu.,e f.J. P~ 
Owner's Signature: I Date: I 
Owner's Printed Name: 

Page 3 of4 

405 Larue Avenue, Edgewood, Florida, 32809·3406 
Phone: 407-851 -2920 I Fax: 407-851-7361 

wwvt.edgewood-fl.gov 

9 
43 



Please submit your completed application to City Hall via email at bmeeks@edqewood-fl.aov or 
srepp@edqewood-fl.aov, via facsimile to 407-851 -7361, or hand deliver to City Hall located at 405 Larue Ave. 
For addf:tional questions, please contact City Hall at 407-851-2920. 

Received By: 

Forwarded To: 

Notes: 

Retised 06/13/2016 

405 Larue Avenue, Edgewood, Florida, 32809-3406 
Phone: 407-851-2920 I Fax: 407-851 -7361 

www .edgewood-fl.gov 

10 

Page 4 of4 

44 



August 16, 2018 

Cityof Edgevvood 
Planning and Zoning Board 

405 La r ue Ave 

Edgewood, FL 32809 

Re : The Waterfront 

4201 S Orange Ave 

Civi !Corp Engineering, Inc. 

630 n Wymore Rd. Suite 310 
Maitland, Fl 327.11 
Cen ificate of Au thorizJ t1on No. 293!:10 
;;o7-S16-0437 

Landscape Buffer- Sec 114-4(1)(a)(1) 

The fo llowing narrative addresses the six standards of approval for a Zoning Variance to Sec 114-
4(1)(a}(1) t o al low 2.38' in lieu of 7', pursuant to City Code Section 134-104(3)(b). The criteria are as 

follows: 

1. Lhat special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land, structure, or building 
invo lved and which are not applicable to other lands, structures or buildings in the same zoning 

district. That the special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actiqns of the 
applicant. 

Th e site was built in 1956, prior to today's codes and expansion of Orange Ave. Due to this, the 
parking lot at its closest point is 2.38' from the right-of-way line and currently allows for safe 
circulation through the site. The existing conditions of the property and the expansion of South 
Orange Ave have resulted in the reduced buffer adjacent to the parking and compliance to the 7' 
woufd resuft in reduced parking lengthf aJrdja,-dri'll'e'WO'f'>Rirdths, thus impacting safe circulation 
on the property. 

2. That t he special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the applicant. 

As stated above, the widening and right-of-way t aking of Orange A.ve have created t his buffer 
reduction. 

3. That approval of the variance requested will not confer on the applicant any special privilege t hat is 
denied by this chapter to other lands, buildings or structures in the same zoning district. 

Due to changes in the area since the building was built in 1956, a reduction in th e landscape buffer 
f rom 7' to 2.38' would not confer on the applicant any special privileges. This request is a result of 
existing conditions unique to this property and should not be looked at as a special privilege. 

4 . n at literal inte rpretation of the provisions contained in t his chapte rwould deprive the applicant of 

rights common ly enjoyed by other properties in the same zoning distr ict under the terms of this 

chapter and would work unnecessary and undue hardship on the app licant. 

11 

45 



,L,·_I§;JSt 16, 2.JJ8 

Page 2 

Literal intupretotion of the code ~vou!d result in the reduction the dril.'eais/e ~'.'idth_, and/or the 
parking lengths set forth in other portions of the code due to proxirnrty of the existing building to 

the right-of-way line. Those sections pertaining to drive aisle widtlisand parking lengths are 

meant to allolv for safe circulation throughout the site. 

5. Th2t the variance app;o\'2d is the rninirnurn varia1ce that v.-i:i rna~:e pJssi:Jie the recsomble use of 
the lar;d, b~J!]ding or structure. 
Due to the location of the existing structure} the variance requested is the minimum required to 

provide safe circulation of vehicles and pedestrians as set forth ir other portions of the Land 
Development Code. 

6. That approval of the v2rian:::e 1sili be in h2rrnon·'/ \'/ith the genera! intEn~ and purpos'::' ofthis chapter 
and that such variance \Vi!! not be injuri:Jus to the neighborhood or other1Nise de~riment2! to the 

public \\'eifare. 

As stated above, the conformance to other portion of the Land Development Code (such as drive 

aisle widths and parking depths} will a!iow for the safety and welfare of the public where the 
buffer reduction will not. 

Since v,.re ore making a request based on existing conditions; we feel tha~ this vori·Jnce will be in horrnony 

with the general intent ond purpose the code. 

Should you have any questions or comments, plecse gi\/2 me a call. 

Sincerely, 
CivilCorp Engineering, Inc. 

----2-z._ 
Stephen Allen, PE #59994 
President 

12 

46 



t- l l"j 17 2018 
I ( • r r G ~ • I f"\[' 

Reference: City of Edgewood Code of Ordinances, Section 126-588 

REQUIRED FEE: $350 RESIDENTIAL $750 COMMERCIAL 

(+App lica ble Pass-Through Fees - Ordinance 2013-01) 

Please note this fee is non-refundable 

PLANNI NG AND ZONING MEETING DATE: 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: .~ Jr .· ._ . .,., 

IM PORT ANT : A COMPLETE application with all required attachments and ten (10) copies must be submitted to t he City 

Clerk __ days before the next Planning & Zoning meetings. No application shall be deemed accepted unless it is 

complete and paid for. 

Notarized let ter of authorization from Owner MUST be submitted if application is filed by anyone other than property 

owner. 

Please ty pe o r p r int. Complete carefully, answe ring each question and attaching all necessary documentation and 

addition;::! pages as necessary. 

Applicant' s Name: Stephen Allen, P.E. Owner's Name: Loch Investments, LLC 

Address: 630 N. v'iymore Rd. #310, Maitland FL 32751 Address : I 
Phone Number: 407·516-0437 Phone Number: 407-963-6978 

.. -
Fax: 

~" Emai l: sallen@civilcorpeng.com mail: ryan.stepup@gmail.com 

Legal Desc ription: SEC dUOCt"iEd. 

Zoned : C-1 

Locati on: 4201 5. Orange Avenue, Orlando FL 32806 

Tract S'ze: 3.37 Acre 

City sect ion of t he Zoning Code from which Sec 114·4(1 )(a)(2) 
Variance i s requested: 

Request: One (1) shade tree for every 12011near feet. 

Existin g on Sit e: No shade trees currently on site. 

The app licant hereby states that t his request for Variance does not violate any deed restrictions on the property. 

Application must be signed by t he legal ow ner, not agent, unless copy of power of at torney is at t ach ed. 

405 Larue Avenue, Edgewood, Florida, 32809-3406 
Phone: 407-851-2920 I Fax: 407-851-7361 

www.edgewood-fl.gov 

13 

Page 2 oj4 

47 



lo j ustify thi s variance, app li cant must demonstrate the following: 

1. Tllat special condition and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land, structure or 
bJ~ding involved and which are not applicable to other lands, structures or building in the same 
2J ni ng classification 
2 t'l e special conditions and circumstances do no result from the action of the applicant 
3 literal interpretation or enforcement of the provisions of the Ordinance would deprive the applicant 
d rights commonly enjoyed by other properties in the same zoning classification under the terms 
d the Ordinance 
4 th·e variance, if authorized, will represent the minimum variance that will a'ford relief and will 
r:p-esent the least modification possible for the regulation at issue 
5 the variance sought will not authorize or extend any non-conforming use or o:her non-conformity 
\ lith respect to the land or structures in questions 
6 In e granting of the variance \Nill be in harmony with the general intent and purpose of this 
Ordinance, will not be injurious to the area involved, or surrounding properties, and will no 
arth orize a use of the property not permitted by its zoning classification 
7 the variance sought will be consistent with the Edgewood Comprehensive Plan 

Applicant must agree that: 

1. In granting any variance, the City may prescribe appropriate conditions and safeguards in 
conformity with the Ordinances, and any regulations enacted under its authority. Violation of such 
conditions and safeguards, when made a part of the terms under which the variance is granted 
shall be deemed a violation of Edgewood ordinances. 

I' AGREE: I DISAGREE: 

2. The variance recommended by the Planning and Zoning Board and approved by the City Council 
5ha« expke in 12 mor.ths in ecc<Jrdence vtith Chapter 134· Hl-4 (3} fe}. 

AGREE: DISAGREE: 
l he applicant hereby states 
the property. 

ve request for Variance does not viola te any deed restrictions on 

Applicant's Signature: 

Applicant's Printed Name: 

Ov1ner's Signature: 

Ov1ner's Printed Name: 

405 Larue Avenue, Edgewood, Florida, 32809-3406 
Phone: 407-851-2920 I Fax: 407-851 -7361 

www.edgewood-fl.gov 

14 

Page3 of4 

48 



Please submit your completed application to City Hall via email at bmeeks@edqewood-fl.oov or 
sreoo@edqewood-fl.aov, via facsimile to 407-851 -7361, or hand deliver to City Hall located at 405 Larue Ave. 
For additi<Jna l questions, please contact City Hall at 407-851 -2920. 

Received By: 

FD'rwarded To: 

Notes: 

Rev·s ed 06/13/2016 

405 Larue Avenue, Edgewood, Florida, 32809-3406 
Phone: 407-851 -2920 I Fax: 407-851 -7361 

wviW.edgewood-fl.gov 

15 

Page 4 of4 

49 



August16, 2018 

Cityof Edgewood 

Planning and Zoning Board 
405 La rue Ave 

Edgewood, FL 32809 

Re : Th e Waterfron t 

4201 S Orange Ave 

Ci•;i iCorp Engineeri1g, Inc. 

630 N. \'!ymore Rd . Sui te 310 

rvlaitia nd,. Fl 32751 

Certificate of Authorizat ion No. 29390 
407-516-0437 

Tree p lacement along the f r ontage - Sec 114-4(1)(a)(2 ) 

The fol lowing narrative addresses the six standards of approval for a Zoning Variance to Sec 114-
4(1)(a}(2) f rom 1 shade tree for each 40 linear feet t o 1 shade tree for each 120 linear feet, pursuant to 
City Co de Sect ion 134-104(3)(b). The criteria are as follows: 

1. That special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land, structure, or building 

invo lved and which are not applicable to other lands, structures or bui ldings in the same zoning 

d istr ict. Th at th e special conditions and circumstances do not resu lt from the actions of th e 
applicant. 
The site was built in 1956, prior to today's codes and expansion of Orange Ave. Due to this, the 
parking Jot at its closest point is 2.38' from the right-of-way line as it stands today. This existing 
condition is not wide enough to place a tree therefore the we are requesting a shade tree every 
120 linear feet, which will be placed in close proximity to the right-of-way line within the 
landscape island required by Secthm 114-4{1){c)(4}. 

2. That the special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the applicant. 

As noted above, the widening and right-of-way t aking of Orange Ave have created this buffer 

r educt ion. 

3. That approval of the va riance requested will not confe r on the appFca nt any special privilege that is 
d en ied by this chapter to other lands, buildings or struct ures in the same zoning district. 

Due to the unique conditions of the property and the narrow landscape buffer that exists, 
distributing the trees in area that are more likely to thrive should not be looked as a special 
privilege. 

4. That l iteral interpretation of the provisions contained in this chapter would deprive th e applicant of 

r ights commonly enjoyed by other properties in the same zoning distr ict under the terms of this 

chapter and would work unnecessary and undue hardship on the appl icant. 
Because of existing conditions, the literal in terpretation of the code would not allow for the shade 
trees to be have adequate planting room between the parking and the right-of-way line. 

16 

50 



AugJ'St 16, 2018 

Pag< 2 

5. rhat th e variance approved is t he minimum variance that will make possible the reasonable use of 

the land, building or structure. 

8emuse of the existing conditions and taking the maximum number of parking before needing a 
landscape island required by Section 114-4{1}(c}(4), the 120' requested is the minimum variance 
possible for reasonable use. 

6. That approval of the variance will be in harmony with the general intent and purpose of this chapter 

and that such variance will not be injurious to the neighborhood or othen.vise detrimental to the 

pu blic welfare . 

Reducing the requirements of shade trees from 1 for every 40 linear feet to 1 f or every 120' will 
li'Ot be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare. In fact 
cut:rent conditions do not show shade trees so the variance would offer improvements. 

Since we are making a request based on existing conditions, we f eel that this variance will be in harmony 
with the general intent and purpose the code. 

Showldl you have any questions or comments, please give me a call. 

Sincerely, 

Civ i!Corp Engineering, Inc. 

.,..Zz_ 
St epklen. Allen, PE #59994 

Presooent 

17 
51 



t'1 1!72018 

\'100 

Reference : City of Edgewood Code of Ord inances, Section 126-588 
REQUIRED FEE: $350 RESIDENTIAL $750 COMMERCIAL 

(+Applicable Pass-Through Fees - Ordinance 2013-01) 
Please note th is fee is non-refundable 

4 

IMPORT A~r: A COMPLETE application with all required attachments and ten (10) copies must be submitted to the City 
Clerk __ .Days before the next Planning & Zoning meetings. No application shall be deemed accepted unless it is 
completeatn€1 pa id for. 

Notarized llettter of authorization from Owner MUST be submitted if application is filed by anyone other than property 
owner. 

Please type o r print. Complete carefully, answering each question and attaching ail necessary documentation and 
additional itJalges as necessary. 

Applican.t's Name: 
Stephen Allen, P.E . 

Owner's Name: Loch Investments, LLC 

. Address: 630 N. Wymore Rd. #310, Maitland FL 32751 Address : 

Phone Nt~mbe r: 407-516-0437 Phone Number: 407-963-6978 

r ax: Fax: 

Email: sallen@civilcorpeng.com Email: 

I C)an.stepup@gmail.com 

legal De'5C riptior.: See Attached. 

Zoned : C-1 

Location: 4201 S. Orange Avenue, Orlando FL 32806 

Tract Size: 3.37 Acre 

Ci ty secti on of th e Zoning Code from which Section 134-348(e) 
Varian ce is requested: 

Request: Setback is 20 feet in lieu of 50 feel 

Exist ing on Site: Setback is 20.31 feet 

The applicant hereby states that this request for Variance does not violate any deed restrictions on the property. 
Applicati on must be signed by the legal owner, not agent, unless copy of power o-f attorney is at tached. 

I 

Page 2 of4 

405 Larue Avenue, Edgewood, Florida, 32809-3406 
Phone: 407-851-2920 I Fax: 407-851 -7361 

vNtw.edgewood-fl.gov 

18 
52 



To justify this variance, appl icant m ust demonstrate the f ollov; ing: 

1.lhat special condition and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land, structure or 
bJ i ld ing involved and which are not applicable to other lands, structures orbu ilding in the same 
zoning c lassification 
2 . t he special conditions and circumstances do no resu lt frorn the action of the applicant 
3 .1iteral interpretation or enforcement of the provisions of the Ordinance would deprive the applicant 
o l r ig hts commonly enjoyed by other properties in the same zoning classification under the terms 
o fthe Ordinance 
4. t he variance, if authorized, will represent the minimum variance that wi l afford relief and will 
represent the least modification possible for the regulation at issue 
5 . the variance sought will not authorize or extend any non-conforming use or other non-conformity 
'v'v'ith respect to the land or structures in questions 
6 .l he granting of the variance will be in harmony with the general intent and purpose of this 
Ordinance, will not be injurious to t~e area involved, or surrounding properties, and will no 
authorize a use of the property not permitied by its zoning classification 
?.the variance sought will be consistent with the Edgewood Comprehensive Plan 

Applicant must ag ree that: 

1 . In granting any variance, the City may prescribe appropriate conditions and safeguards in 
conformity with the Ordinances, and any regulations enacted under its authority. Violation of such 
conditions and safeguards, when made a part of the terms under which the variance is granted 
shall be deemed a violation of Edgewood ordinances. 

AG REE: 

2. The variance recommended by the Planning and Zoning Board and approved by the City Council 
shaH expire ln 12 montlrs· in ac:cc.rcrafice· 'f\~{1'1· Chapt-er 134-1·04 (3) (e). 

AGREE: DISAGREE: 
T he applicant hereby states ;P 
the property. 

ove request for Variance does not violate any deed restrictions on 

Applicant's Signature: 

Applicant's Printed Name: 

Owner's Signature: 

Owner's Printed Name: 

405 Larue Avenue, Edgevvood, Florida, 32809-3406 
Phone: 407-851 -2920 I Fax: 407-851 -7361 

vWNI.edgewood-fl.gov 

19 

Page 3 oj4 

53 



Please submit your completed application to City Hall via email at bmeeks@edgewood-fl.aov or 
srepp@edgewood-fl.gov, via facsimile to 407-85'1-736'1, or hand deliver to City Hall located at 405 Larue Ave. 
For additional questions, please contact City Hall at 407-85'1 -2920. 

Received By: 

Forwarded To: 

Notes: 

Revised 06/13/2016 

405 Larue Avenue, Edgewood, Florida, 32809-3406 
Phone: 407-851-2920 I Fax: 407-851-7361 

www.edgewood-fl.gov 

20 

Page 4 o/4 

54 



August 16, 2018 

Ci ty of Edgewood 
Plan 11i'ng and Zoning Board 
405 la rue Ave 
Edge.'do.od, FL 32809 

Re: The Waterfront 
4201 S Orange Ave 

CiviiCo~p Engineering Inc. 

630 N. Wymore Rd. Suite 310 

r.tditland, FL 32751 

Certificate uf A1Jthor izalion No. 29390 
407-516-0437 

Bu"l di ng Setback from The f\JHWE- Sec 134-348(e} 

The fo llowing narrative addresses the six standards of approval for a Zoning Variance to Sec 134-348(e) 
frollfl SO' t o 20' to, pursuant to City Code Section 134-104(3)(b): 

1. ltrlat special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land, structure, or bui lding 
inNo!ved and which are not applicable to other lands, structures or bu ildings in t he same zoning 
di tst rict. Th at the special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the 
atpplicant. 
T~e building was built in 1956 to its current location of 20.31' from today's normal high water 
el!evation of Lake Jennie Jewel, prior to current 50' setback requirements. 

2. Tlha.t t he special condit ions and circumstances do not result from the actio ns of the applicant. 
As noted above, the building was built in its wrrent location of 1956, prior to current owner's 
{)'tJrchase of the property. 

3. Tilat approval of the variance requested will not confer on the applicant any special privi lege that is 
denied by th is chapter to other land s, buildings or structures in the same zoning district. 
This request is a result of existing conditions unique to this property and should not be looked at 
as a special privilege. 

4. That literal interpretation of the provisions contained in this chapter would deprive the applicant of 
rights commonly enjoyed by other properties in the same zoning district under the terms of this 
chap-ter and would work unnecessary and undue hardship on the applicant. 
The literal interpretation of the code would deprive the applicant rights commonly enjoyed by the 
applicant because of the existing conditions. Literal interpretation of the code would require the 
owner to relocate the building entirely an additional 3D', thvs resulting in changes to the safe 
cfriveway and parking circulation as well as front setback encroachment. 

5. That the variance approved is the minimum va riance that will make possible the reasonable use of 
the l and, building or structure. 

21 
55 



J\ugJst 16, 20lS 
F'age 2 

Due to existing conditions/ we ore requesting the 20' setback because that's the appro,-.imote 
location of the existing building to the normal water elevation. 

6. Thct approve.: of til-2 vcriaT::e v.-11: b2 in ;:2rn~orr,- \';ith th2 gen2r2: in:ent an:i p·JrpJs:: o~th:s cr·.2p~~~ 
a:1d that such \'ari2nc:e v:i:l nJ~ b: i11jurious to th:= n;:igh::wrhc<Jd oroth2r',-vis'? detr·ir:J:::-n~c! to th2 
public I/J2Ifare. 

As stated above1 the relocation of the building ~vould impact more areas of the code (e.g., drive 
aisle width1 parking lot length1 front setback1 etc.) which could be injurious to the neighborhood. 

Since v,e a.~e making o request b':Jsed on existing conditiot!S
1 

'.'/2 feel that rh.:s votiurice v.--."// b:; iri h:JrrnorJy 

t•;ith th? gen2rol jrJtent and purpJse the code. 

Sh(I-.J:cl you heve an~' questio:1s or comrnen:s, please give me a cell. 

Sin:erely, 

Civ:ICorp Engineering/ Inc. 

----2.-z_ 
StephEn Allen, PE #59994 

Pr6id Ent 

22 

56 



APPUCATION FOR VARIANCE 

Reference: City of Edgewood Code of Ordinances, Sect ion 126-588 
REQU IR ED FEE: $350 RESIDENTIAL $750 COMMERCIAL 

(+Applicable Pass-Through Fees- Ordin ance 2013-01} 
Please note this fee is non-refundable 

VARIANCE APPLICATION#: 2018-Var-10 
PLANNING AND ZONING MEETING DATE: 1/14/2019 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 2/19/2018 

IM PORT ANT: A CO MPLETE application with all required attachments and ten (10) copies must be submitted to the Ci ty 
Clerk ..1Q_ days before the next Planning & Zoning meetings. No application shall be deemed accepted unless it is 
completeCind pa id for. Notarized letter of authorization from Owner MUST be sub11it ted if app lica tion is filed by 
anyone othe r than property owner. 

Please type o r print. Complete carefully, answering each question and attaching all necessary documentation and 
add itional pages as necessary. 

Applicant's Name: Stephen Allen, P.E. Owner's Name: Loch Investments, LLC 

Address: 630 N. Wymore Rd #310 Address: 4201 S. Orange Avenue 
Maitland, FL 32751 Edgewood, FL 32806 

Phone Number: 407-516-0437 Phone Number: 407-963-6978 

Fax: Fwx: 

Emai l: sallen@civilco rpeng.com Emai l: Rya n.stepup@gmail.com 

Legal Description: COMM SW COR OF SEC RUN N 852.61 FT S 89 DEG E 330FT S 74 OEG W 60.74 FT TOE R/W ST RD 527 & 
POB TK N 74 OEG E 154.54 FT r~ 22 OEG E 480FT M/l TON LINE 0' SWl/4 OF SWij& W TO E R;WST IW 
527 S 16 DEG E TO POB IN SEC 12·23-29 

Zoned: C-1 

Location: 4201 S. Orange Avenue Edgewood, FL 32806 

Tract Size: 3.37 acre 

City section of the Zoning Code from Sec 134-605 (a}(19) 
which Variance is requested: 

Request: 

Existing on Site: 

to allow for 1 Qarking space for each 4 seats in lieu of 1 pa rking space 
for each 4 seats plus one space for each 74 squa re feet of floor area to 
provide fo r patron use which does not contain fixed seats 

405 Larue Avenue, Edgewood, Florida, 32809-3406 
Phone: 407-851-2920 I Fax: 407-851-7361 

~WNY.edgewood -fl.gov 

57 



The applicarnt hereby states that this request for Variance does not violate any deed restrictions on the property. 
Appl ica tion must be signed by the legal owner, not agent, unless copy of power of attorney is attached. 

Page 2 o/4 

leo JlustHy this variance, applicant must demonstrate the following: 

1. Blat special condition and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land, structure or 
build ing involved and which are not applicable to other lands, structures or building in the same 
zooiing c lassification 
2. th:e special condi tions and circumstances do no result from the action of the appl icant 
3. literall interpretation or enforcement of the provisions of the Ordinance wou!d deprive the applicant 
of ri~hts; commonly enjoyed by other properties in the same zoning classificalion under the terms 
of thJE 0 rdinance 
4. th1e variance, if authorized, will represent the minimum variance that will afford relief and will 
repres.ernt the least modifica tion possible for the regulation at issue 
5. thte variance sought will not authorize or extend any non-conforming use or other non-conformity 
v.i fh resrpe:cl to the land or structures in questions 
~. thle grranting of th e variance will be in harmony with the general intent and purpose of this 
Ondiman~e; will not be injurious to the area involved, or surrounding properties, and will no 
aLJlh orize a use of the property not permitted by its zoning classification 
7. th e variance sought will be consistent with the Edgewood Comprehensive Pl'an 

Appli~antmust agree that: 

1. tn ~ ran ting any variG!nce, the City may prescribe appropriate conditions and safeguards in 
c:onfo~mity with the Ordinances, and any regulations enacted under its authority. Violation of such 
con(J i~ons and safeguards, when made a part of the terms under vmk:h the variarv;e is granted 
shall be deemed a violation of Edgewood ordinances. 

_.-;;;? ~ 
II AGREE: I .r" £.--? ~I' __...._ I DISAGREE: I I 

/ 
2. l't're variance recommlfnded by the Planning and Zoning Board and approved by the City Council 

shall e)(pire In 12 months In accordance with Chapter 134-104 (3>) (e) .. 
...--?' 

II AGREE: I ,---c.-;, L I DISAGREE: ~ I 
lh'e app.fic:ant hereby states thal-tfle abovfrrequest for Variance does not vkila le any deed restrictions on 
the property. 

1 J 
AppJica rnt''s Signature: .......---7~Date: I /Z( l t JZ'Ol9 
Applicant"s Printed Name: ~ ~Tif HerV A~ 
Owner's Signature: 

Owner's Printed Name: 

1 Date: I 

405 Larue Avenue, Edgewood, Florida, 32809-3406 
Phone: 407-851-2920 I Fax: 407-851 -7361 

www.edgewood-fl.gov 

Poge3of4 

58 



Please submit your completed appll8ation to City H2!J via ernai! at brneeks0Jeqge\VJ:)d-fl.qov o~ 
srepo@§dgei•Jood-fl.gov, via facsirn'.!e to 407-851-7361, or hand deliver lo City Ha!i loca:ed a\ 405 Larue Ave. 
Foe addi:ional questions, please conlact City Hail a! 407-851-2920. 

Notes: 
------L---------------------------

Rev·ier! 05/13/2016 

405 Larue Avenue, Edgewood, Florida, 32809-3405 
Phone: 407-851-2920 I Fax: 407-851-7361 

VNN:.edge\·\'Ood-fl.gov 

Pag;! 17 of 4 

59 



December 3, 2018 

Ci ty of Ed gewood 

Planning and Zoning Board 
405 Larue Ave 

Edgewood, FL 32809 

Re: The Wat erfront 
4201 S Orange Ave 

Offsite Parking 

CiviiCorp Enginee ring, Inc. 
630 N. Wymore Rd. Suite 310 
Maitland, FL 32751 
Certificate of Authorization No. 29390 
407·516-0437 

Recei v ed 12 / 3/ 2018 

The following narrative addresses the six standards of approval for a Zoning Variance to Sec 134-605 
(a}(19) to allow for 1 pa rking space for each 4 seats in lieu of 1 parking space for each 4 seats plus on 

space for each 75 square feet of floor area provided for patron us which does not contain fixed seats, 
pursuant to City Code Section 134-104(3)(b): 

1. Th at special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land, structure, or build ing 
involv ed and which are not applicable to other lands, st ructures or buildings in the same zoning 
district. That the special condit ions and circumstances do not result from the actions of t he 
appl icant. 

Existing conditions, built in 1956, have only 12 parking stalls and 19 are required per the parking 
per code for the existing Ocwpant load of 75 people. The Applicant is asking to increase occupan t 
code to 150 and plan to increase parking to 42 stalls, which includes 2 handicapped stalls. The 
applicant understands this is not fully going to fulfill the large crowds during special events, 
holidays, etc. The existing conditions and unique circumstances limit the use of the land /elf 
parking. The site has the Lake on the East s;de that has the existing building 20' from the 
high water line and a very di!tance to Orange Avenue right-of-way line. There Is currently an 
agreement with the Car Bar to allow f or an additiona/40 spaces to be provided for staff and valet 
parking. 

2. Th at t he special conditions and ci rcumstances do not result from the ac t ions of t he applicant. 
As noted above, the site was built in 1956 with very unique circumstances surrounding the 
property. The applicant is improving the site in other areas, such as replacing the septic tank with 
a lift station, to maximize the parking with what land is available. 

3. Th at approval of the variance requested wil l not confer on the applicant any special privilege that is 
denied by this chapter to other lands, buildings or structures in the same zoning district. 
Under the unique shape and circumstances of the land, the variance requested would not confer 
on the applicant any special privileges that is denied to other lands in the same zoning district. 

60 



December 3, 2018 

P2i;:E 2 

The applicant would gladly add the additional parking required by Sec 13'1~605{a)(19) if it were 
physicaf/y possible. 

4. That litercl in~erpretatio.1 of the provisio;-JS contained in this c'nap~2nNould deprive the applican: o~ 
righ~s commonly enjoyed by ether properties in the same zo.1ing district u.1der the terms of this 
chapter a,-,d would wor~ unnecess3;y and undue hardship on the applicant. 
The literal interpretation of the code would deprive the applicant rights commonly enjoyed by the 
applicant because of the existing conditions of the land. By taking out a portion of the code, 1 
space per 75 square feet of floor area provided for patron us which does not contain fixed seats, 
the applicant will be able to provide 1 space per every 4 seats. 

5. That the variance approved is the minimum variance th2t vJil! ma~e possible the reasonable use of 
the I 2nd, bu: 1:ding or structure. 
The requested variance is the minimum variance that would allow the reasonable use of the land 
due to the unique conditions. The applicant would gladly add the additional parking required by 
Sec 134~605 (a}{19) if it were physically possible. 

6. That approval of the variance \.viii be in harmony with the genera[ in:cnt and purpose of this cha;:>ter 

and that such variance \Vii! no~ be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detri:nental to the 
public welfare. 
Since we are making a request based on existing conditions~ we feel that this variance wi!l be in 
harmony with the general intent and purpose the code. 

The applicant has on agreement with the Cor Bar at 3862 5 Orange Ave to allow for 40 parking spaces to 
be used for staff and valet parking. This would allow the applicant to double their current parking 
ofjsite. 

Should you have any questions or comments, please give me a call. 

Sincerely, 
Civil Corp Engineering, Inc. 

~-z_ 
Stephen Allen, PE 1159994 
President 

61 



Received 12/3/2018 

"· 
... 

LAKE JENN I E JEWEL 
WETLAND EDGE PLANTING, TYP. .- - . ,.;::: -~' - -

EXISTING PALM TO REMAIN~ 

SEE LANDSCAPE LEGEND . ~:·t;_·{ijJ. . --® --~~i"ii:f-s;~;:s~~i: , 

"HIGHRISE" LIVE OAK 

BILLBOARD 

·--------------------------------- - ----~---~ ~ - ---- -----~----------

@ LANDSCAPE PLAN 

SYWOL QlY BOTANICAL N.M€ 
TREES 

IC 14 /lex cassile 'Nafi-,a' 

SP 6 Saba/ palmetto 

av 9 Quercus virginiana 'Highrise' 

SHRUBS AND GROL.tlDCOVER 
N3 Aractus gabrata 'Ecolurl' 
FK Tr.j)sacum 17oridanum 
HP Hamef'Ja patens 'Fi'e"y' 
LM Urlope muscari 'Big Blue' 
VN Viburnum obovatum 'Mrs. Schil!er's Delighf 
1P Zamia pumla 

WETLAND EDGE PLANTNG 
CF Canna flaccida 
DH Dyschoriste humistrala 
FK Tripsacum !Joridanum 

.--:~ v 
Q:._"';_f!f;;·r::_)>Q Q\ 1;fi~ 

~<~ ..,,.-.,.. q J I~ 
;0::':t'SJ~, -,.-:: P;o q .......... . , .. ,_ .. ~, ' r:-.~:..t 

.-.~~ -:---,·..._~.-: :+·-· ' ~ -
.. /': :-:,.-· '~fi...'C~ \ .,...,.. .... -

/ -.l) • ~--

FRONTAGE BUFFER PLANTING, TYP. 

SHRUBS AND GROUNDCOVER, TYP. 
SEE LANDSCAPE LEGEND 

CO~M::>NNAM: 

Dahoon Nativa CT 

Saba! Palm 

Highrise Live Oak 

EeoMg Perennial PeanUI 
Dwarf Fakahatchee Grass 
Dwarf Firebush 
UlyTurf 
Dwarf WaHer's Viburnum 
Coootie 

Canna Lily 
Swamp Twin1\cwer 
Dwarf Fakahalchee Grass 

SPECFICAH::>N 

45 gal., Clear TIIJ'1kSTD, 10'-11' hl, 4' 
spd., 2.75" cal., Cherrytal<e !Usery 

B&B, 8'-16' CT, regeoeraled head, sf!Ci<, 

100 gal., 12'-13' hl, T-8' spd., 3.5' cal., 
Cherrylake ~ery 

1 gal., lush, 24" O.C. 
3 gal., M, 36"0.C. 
3 gal., 12-18" ht, 30" O.C. 
1 gal., lush, 15" O.C. 
3 gal., 18" hl, fuR, 36" O.C. 
3 gal., 12"-18" ht , ful and lush, 36" O.C. 

3 gal, lush, 24" O.C. 
1 gal., 12" o.c. 
3 gal., run, 36" o.c. 

HIGHRISE LIVE OAK 
QUERCUS VIRGIN/ANA 'HGHRISE' 
CHERRYlAKE NURSERY, 3.5" CAL 

MSCELLANEOUS 
MULCH ___________ ____::Mc::"'.=..·:...:pi'le:..:::..:B:o:ark=~-- 2"tl1ickness 

@PLANT LIST @TREE I WAGES 
LUXl Itt& 

EXISTING 40" OAK 
TOTO REMAIN 

DAHOON HOLLY STANDARD 
UNDERSTORY CLUSTER, TYP. 

"HIGH RISE" LIVE OAK, TYP. 

DAHOON NATIVACT 
/LEXCASS/NE 'NAnVA' 
CHERRYLAKE NURSERY, 2.75" CAL 

LANDSCAPE LEGEND-

0 

0 

NOTE: 

OV. HIGHRISE LIVE OAl< 
CANOPY TREE. &:! O.C . 
FOR USE IN VEHICULAR USE AREAS 

IC: CAHOON HOLLY STANDA~D 
UNDERSTORY TREE 
FOR USE ALONG STREETSCAPE V.liERE S?ACE 
LIMITATIONS RESTRICT US£0f CA'lOPY TREES 

SP: SABAL PALM 
UNDERSTORY TREE 
FOR USE NEAR BUILDING AIC IN USER AREAS 

r:AVARF WALTER'S VIBURr-.U" HEDG£ 
BUFFER PLANTING 
FOR USE IN AREAS 'MiERE BUFFER IS REQUIRED 

WETLAND EDGE PLANTING 
FOR USE ALONG EDGE OF W<E TO AID IN THE 
FILTRATION OF GROUNOWATER RUNOFF 

FAKAHATCHEE GRASS 
CANNA LILY 
T¥11N FLOWER 

SHRUBS AND GROUNOCOVER 
FAKAHATCHEE GRASS 
WALTER'S VI8URNUM 
FIREBUSH 
COONTIE 
URIOPE 
PERENNIAL PEANUT 

~STINGTREETORE~N 

DUE TO ~STING PAVEMENT CONDITIONS A.'IO ~STING 
OVERHEAD UTUTIES, THERE IS NOT ADEQUATE SPACE ALONG 
ORANGE AVENUE TO PlANT LARGE CANOPY TREES 

PER SECTION 114-4 OF CITY OF EDGEWOOD DEVeLOPMENT CODE. 
UNDERSTORY TREES W.Y BE USED IN LIEU Of CANOPY TREES IN 
THE EVENT THAT AREOULREO BUFFER IS W111-UN 10'0F AN 
OVERHEAD UTILITY AT A RATE OF 1 TREE PER25LINEAR FEET. 

345 UNEAR FEET • 14 UNDERSTORY TREES 
(14) UNDERSTORY TREES PROVIDED ALONG ORANGE AVENUE 
(9) CANOPY TREES PROVIDED INTERNAL TO TilE SITE 
(6) PALM TREES PROVIDED ALONG WETLAND BUFFER 

SABAL PALM. REGENERATED HEAD 
SABA!. PALMETTO 
GRIFFIN TREES NURSERY 

DATE: 201S.12.()3 

K.VO 

REVISION DATE 

'0.~ ~~ 
~g ~~ 

""' -::: ~~ ., 

(j) 
z 
<( z 
.....J <{ 

Cl. ....J 
0. 

w w 
n. 

0.. <{ 
0 

<( (/) 
0 

0 z 
(j) 

<{ 
....J 

0 ....J 
<{ 

z :::> 
1-

<( n. 
w .....J 0 

w z 
0 

0 (.) 

0 
0 

L 1.00 



\ 
\ 
\ 

\ 

.~ 

. 
\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 

II 
T1 
T 

'I 

I 

l .. - _,. 

CfVoDNQ LE<BD 
D..f:YA~ n 
rrncJoL M' 

I:I1Ail<:m co 
I'MJil nn'A -.c>l I( 

ll.UCICtl' HC 

~llLV4~ , ... ' 
I'IIO"'C!!l) SP'QT llLVA~ ~......-

-fC.Ll' • 
~Del~ Cl 
.__. NX. STOIIInlol. TU f\.0'1' 

!l.LI'~ ~ CQQI('l( P'!"( OICJ' 

Jt[H"Olal) COf(:R(TE PIP€ ""' 
PO. T WOO. CH...CJliiX f'l'li: pv; 

~ f\.0011 ruYA~ m 
~ 5/rl 

ttmt 

CB066 8EC1JON A-A 
IUtr: I;JO 
'tQT: 1:1 

rl 
P9'2 1 +<I 

I 
$e)(.£; ,. - f':J 

I"'" 

• 
• 

"-r .. "' ~ 

-· 

I 
~ 

"' "' 
t ! ~ 

j::l 
~ 

~ I 
~ 

i 
i . 
~ ~ 

~ 

l:i,i 
~~~ ~ dd 

! 
I " .. I 
k rl 

I 
ll 

SHEET NO. 

C-2 

(Y') 
<.0 



' 
... ) 

Tli( 1"00 -.J. « oaiQ'«::l '10 wa:r 'Ill!: ~~ 
r:F lH!: ST ..o«s liN!JI W.lUI ~ D!nliiCT. 

LFT SIAJlON NOTE 

.. tm;IRHf) 
I 

: sn:~ LM 

/ wmll lW.: or J!OoloD 

/ ~TU« 
• ()OfT);O !DO( r:F PAIIEIOT 

/ 
/ 

/ 
/ 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

~-- ,. .. 
se.ot£: ,. - 2ft 

I 
; 

I 
I 

/& 
!R" 
· 0 

/I' 
I 

lc;-
/? I . 

.. ~ 
/$ 

i 
I 

/ 
/ 

/ 
/ 

/ 
/ 

/ 
I 

/ 
/ 

I 
/ 

\ IV1UIR ......... - : 
--,_ IIJ 'I».D, • ~ WAll />it .... """"' I 

\ "" 'IOtA. lfA l'q I 

~ / 
\ i 
\ :' 

) / 
' I 
\ / 

\ ! 
\ ~ Sf:T )fiR 
~ • LB nea 
\ ,..;.., • \ 5 o'sw ""'"'• 

\-",.,_ ~\C) \ 
~(\A:9·':1" 

... -... lt!J~'f( 
... - \\15 

AO)..III(D FlJt lll:S"tAIJINm I •N:S. PO 4 a:A TS + t IP !CO. Pill UOl 
?5 bJM( FUT Of ~ MO. PIIOWXD ~ PA TliOII US: ..-:H DOD 
NOT CQnAIII I"DDlD !llA~ (loiH. 4 11'-'ttS) 

• VN&Nfe% IQIJCltff ~ 1 'S1' ~a. ~ UoOl n '!IOJHIL nrr or P'\.OCII 
NlV. P"'II'ottlm ~ I' A '111011 Ullt ~ IXlD !lOT CQn ~ I"DDlD R:A~ 

1!10 !ll:ATI/....:. PN<IOfO IPACO + 4 *. • 4t I'~ :I'ACO 

~ U) to' llloiCICN' P'MICIIIO 'IPJ<U + («>) 90' PN/fCMQ 
'IPACU • Q PMOIQ •ACtS 

8EAltiG COUNT 

'«< 
I 

.. . . .. .. 

1-
u 
Ww o::e 
a=< a.z 

C:Ut"C'T 

I ' .. I 
r II! 

l 
ll 

1-w 
ttl ::E 
J:< 
UlZ 

IJ(\ 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC I-IEAJUNG 

PLEASE TAKE N OTI CE that at its Planning & Zoning meetir..;on 1\lon day, S ep tember 10, 
201/J the Planning and Zoning Board of the City of Edgewood, will consider the following 
Variances for the property located at 4201 South Orange Avenue in C-1 zoning district (City of 
Edge\.mod Resolution 2oos-Roo2 City Code of Ordinances, Reference Section 134-104 
[Valiance]): 

• Val'iance 2018-07 - The applicant is requesting a reduction in the landscape buffer 
width from 7 feet (minimum) to a ·width between 3.98 feet and 2.38 feet along the entire 
frontage of the site. Sec 114-4(1)(a)(1) 

• Variance 2018-oS -The applicant is requesting a reduction from one shade tree every 
40 feet to one shade tree every 120 feet adjacent to the public street right-of-way. Sec 
l14-4(1) (a)(2) 

• Va riance 2018-og - The applicant is requesting the building setback distance from the 
normal water elevation of the adjacent water body be reduced from so feet to 20 feet. 
Sec 134-348 

The application was submitted by Stephen Allen, P.E. on behalf of property owner Loch 
Investm ents, LLC. The meeting will be held in the Council Chambers of City Hall, 405 Larue 
Avenue, Edge·wood, Florida beginning at 6 :30p.m. or as s oon ther eafter as the m atter 
may be h eard. The Planning and Zoning Board's recommendation ,'lin be fonvarded to City 
Council on Tuesday, Octobe.r 16, 2 01 8 at 6:30 J2.m. for final action. 

Th~ subject property for variance is legally described as COMM SW COR OF SEC RUN N 852.61 
FT S 89 DEG E 330 Ff S 74 DEG W 60.74 FT TOE R/W ST RD 527 & POB TH N 74 DEG E 
154.54 FT N 22 DEG E 480FT M/L TO N LINE OF SW1j 4 OF SW1/ 4 W TO E R/ W ST RD 527 S 
16 DEG E T O POB IN SEC 12-23-29 

~~======~~~~~====~====~ 

405 Lame Avenue • Tel: 407-851-2920 • Fax: 407-851 -7361• www.edgewood-fl.gov 

24 
65 



Inler~ested p a11i es m ay attend th is m eeting and b e hear d v\ith r esp ect to this 
va.rja.nce ap plication. In addition, tl1e applicat ion(s) may b e inspect ed by th e 
public at the City Clerk's Office, 405 Larue Avenue, Edgewood, Florida. 

You m ay reach City HailJ at 407-851-2920i City Hall is open Mol11day - Tinu·sdl.ay 
8 a.!'Cl- tD 4 p.m. and tFriciiay 8 a.m. to n oon. Should you have any g_uestion or 
con c£r:-rt~ please do not hesitate to come to Cit • Hall to rev:ie\\·tlle e. 
This matter is subject to quasi-judicial rules of procedure. Interested parties should limit contact 
\~ith the Planning and Zoning Board and City Council on this topic to properly noticed hearings 
or to~vvritten communication to the City Clerk's Office. 

Any per son aggrieved by a recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Board may file a notice 
of appeal to the City Council \Yithin seven days after such recommendation is filed -.,-,.ith the city 
clerk 

The Citry of Edgewood desires to accommodate persons with disabili ties. Accordingly, any 
physically bandicil pped person, pursuant to Chapter 286.26, Florida Statutes, should, at least 
48 h ours prior to the meeting, submit a \YTitten request that the physically handicapped person 
desir es to attend the meeting to t he City Clerk's Office . 

This public hearing may be continued to a fu ture date or dates. Any interested party is advised 
that the dat e, time, and place of any continuation shall be announced during the public hearing 
and that no further notices regarding this matter will b e published. 

Should you desire additional information, regarding this application, please feel free to contact 
Edgewood City Hall at 407-851-2920, or e-mail at f~}:f~4\€\"l:~o~:R.lJi1~Y. 

Sandy Repp 
Deputy City Clerk 
Dated: August 24, 2018 

You rnau either mail in l/OU'l· comments and concerns on t:1w space provided 
below or submit directh1 to City Hall. Please see above our hours of operation. 
"M'e thank youfm• lf0117' partic:ipatio-n. 

405 Lame Avenue • Tel: 407-85 1-2920 • Fax: 407-851-7361 • \NWW.edgewood-fl .gov 

25 

66 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEAlUNG 

PLEASE TAJ<E NOTICE that at its Planning & Zoning meeting on Monday, January 14, 
2 019 the Planning and Zoning Board of the City of Edgewood, will consider the following 
Variance for t he property located at 4201 South Orange Avenue in C-1 zoning dis trict (City of 
Edge" ·ood Resolution 2005-R002 City Code of Ordinances, Reference Section 134-104 
[Variance]): 

• Variance 2018-10 - The applicant is requesting to allm\· for 1 parking space for each 4 
seats in lieu of one (1) space for each four fixed seats provided for patron use, plus one 
space for each 75 square feet of floor area provided for patron use which does not 
contain fixed seats. [Section 134-605 (a)(19)] 

The application was submitted by Stephen Allen, P.E. on behalf of property owner Loch 
Imestments, LLC. The meeting will be held in the Council Chambers of City Hall, 405 Larue 
Avenue, Edgewood, Florida beginning at 6:30 p.m. or as soon thereafter as the matter 
may be h eard. The Planning and Zoning Board's recommendation will be forwarded to Cit-)1 
Council on Tuesday, February 19, 2018 at 6:30 p.m. for final action. 

The subj ect property for variance is legally described as COMM SW COR OF SEC RUN N 852.61 
FT S 8g DEG E 330FT S 74 DEG W 60.74 FT TO E R/ W ST RD 527 & POB TH N 74 DEG E 
154.54 FT N 22 DEG E 480FT M/ L TO N LINE OF SW1j 4 OF SW1/ 4 W TO E R/ W ST RD 527 S 
16 DEG E TO POB IN SEC 12-23-29 

·--- -~-

405 Larue Avenue • Tel: 407-85 1-2920 • Fax: 407-85 1-7361• www.edgewood-fl.gov 

67 



I nt e t·este d p a rties may a ttend this m eeling and b e heard "ith r esp ect t o this 
varia n ce applicat i on. In addition , the ap plication(s) m ay b e inspected b y the 
pulJlic a t the City Clerk's Office, 4 05 Laru e Avenue, E d gewood , Flor ida. 

You may reach City Hal l at 407-851-2920; City Hall is open Monday - Thul'sday 
8 a.m. to 4 p.m. and Fl'iday 8 a.m. to noon. Should you have any guestions or 
concDrils l ease do not hesitate to come to City Hall to re,iew the fil e . 
Thi s matter is subject to quasi-judicial rules of p rocedure. Interested parties should limit contact 
with the Planning and Zoning Board and City Council on this topic to properly noticed hearings 
or to wri tten communication to the City Clerk's Office. 

Any person aggrieved by a recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Board may file a not ice 
of appeal to the City Council \\ithin seven days after such recommendation is filed \\ith the city 
clerk. 

The Ci ty of Edgewood desires to accommodate persons with disabilities. Accordingly, any 
physically handicapped person, pursuant to Chapter 286.26, Florida Statutes, should, at least 
48.hours p rior to the meeting, submit a written request that the physically handicapped person 
desires to attend the meet ing to the City Clerk's Office. 

This public hearing may be continued to a future date or dates. Any interested party is advised 
that the date, time, and place of any continuation shall be announced during the public hearing 
and that no further notices regarding this matter will be published. 

Sh()uld you desire additional information, regarding this application, please feel free t o contact 
Edge" ·ood City Hall at 407-851-2920, or e-mail at sriffle@OOg.el\>rorvrl-lflgO>·. 

Sandy Riffle 
Deputy City Clerk 
Dated: December 26, 2 0 18 

You matt either mail in l/Ollr comments and concerns on the space provided 
b~low or submit clirectl!l to City Hall. Please see above our hours of operation. 
1-Ve thank 1/0ll [or It our participation. 

405 Larue Avenue • Tel: 407-851 -2920 • Fax: 407-851 -7361 • www.edgewood-fl. gov 

68 



Edgewood Police Department 
City Counci l Report 

Jnmwn · Februall' 
Residential Burglaries 1 0 

Commercial Burglaries 0 3 
Auto Burglaries 1 1 

Theft 2 3 

Assault/Battery 0 1 

Sexua I Battery 0 0 

Homicides 0 0 

Robbery 0 0 

Traffic Accident 6 11 
Traffic Citations 114 200 

Red Light Citations 539 548 
Traffic Warnings 163 252 

Felony Arrests 3 7 

Misdemeanor Arrests 3 7 

Warrant Arrests 0 1 

Traffic Arrests 2 4 
DUI Arrests 2 1 

Department Highlights: 

The Edgewood Police Department conducted a MOVE OVER campaign this month. The purpose 

of this campaign is t o inform t he public about t he move over law and how it works. Officers 

have been focused on pulling over drivers who are not obeying this law and placing emergency 

personnel in danger. 

Officer Crock has been taking on some additional responsibilities in t he Criminal Investigations 

Division of the department. In doing so, Officer Crock fi led charges on multiple suspects t hat 

closed open cases. 

From January 29 to January 31'1, t he Edgewood Police Department had its mock accreditation. 

Three accredit ation managers from outside agencies reviewed po lici es, t raining, equipment, 

reports, and security. The mock accred itation found that t he agency will be ready for its re

accredited in Apri l. 

.. On February 1'1, 2019 numerous officers pa rt icipated in a DUI det ail host ed by UCF Police. 

During t his detail Officers Crock and Officer Meade made multiple arrest which included; a 

w arrant, a violation of probation, felony drug possession, and took a gun off the st reet that was 

in posit ion of a felony suspect. 

• On February 6, 2019 t he Edgewood Police Department held a departmental meeting. Our 

annual awards were presented to officers and staff for all of their hard work t hroughout 2018. 

At tached is a list of some of th e highlighted awards. 

If you have any additional questions 

Contact Chief John Freeburg 
jfreeburg@edgewood·fl.gov 

69 



2018 EDGEWOOD POLICE DEPARTMENT AWARDS 

Officer Amy Schlopy-Officer of the Year 

Officer Crock (Chief Special Award)-most proactive in the area of traffic enforcement 

Sergeant Cardinal and Analyst Salemi (Unit Citation)-Dedication to investigations and 

gathering intelligence in order to solve multiple crimes throughout the year. 

Officer Lafan (Police Commendation)-Efforts for accreditation and participation in 

multiple accreditation mocks across the central Florida region. 

Officer Meade (Chief Special Award)-Most proactive overall and commitment to the 

training program 

Officer Kane, Officer Crock, Police Clerk Debbie Cabales, and Analyst Stacey Salemi (Unit 

Citation)-Participation in the Special Olympics Torch Run 

Officer Meade, Sergeant Cardinal, Officer La fan, Officer Brahm, and Officer Schlopy 

(Training Unit Citation)-Training Unit's dedication to ensuring the training of the agency 

is complete and organized. 

Officer Meade, Officer Lafan, and Officer Schlopy- Awarded Officer First Class 

70 



-...J 
~ 

metroplan orlando 
A REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION PARTNERSHfP 

O-rlando Urban Area 
FY 2023/24 - 2039/40 

Prioritized Project List 
Draft for Approval 

by the Metro Plan Orlando Board 
on February 13, 2019 

Draft: 02/:1.3/2019 



-..J 
N 

FY 2023/24- 2039/40 
Prioritized Project List 

Executive Summary 

Introduction 

Each year, MetroPian Orlando prepares a Transportation Improvement Program (TIP), which contains the highway, 
bicycle/pedestrian, transit, aviation and other transportation-related projects in the MetroPian Orlando region (Orange, 
Osceola and Seminole Counties) that are programmed for funding over the next five yea rs. This process begins in the 
summer of the previous year with t he development of a Prioritized Project List (PPL). This document contains a list of 
unfunded projects on the National Highway System, State Roads, Multimodal System, Regional Trails and Transit that have 
been prioritized for f unding and are described in more detail in the following section. This list of projects is scheduled to 
cover the period that follows the f inal f iscal year of the FY 2018/19 - 2022/ 23 TIP through the target year of MetroPian 
Orlando's currently adopted Long Range Transportation Plan. Therefore, this PPL covers the FY 2023/ 24 through FY 
2039/ 40 time period. 

After this document is approved by the MetroPian Orlando Board, it will be submitted to the Florida Department of 
Transportation (FOOT). FOOT will use the PPL to select projects for fund ing in their FY 2019/10- 2023/24 Tentative Five 
Year Work Program based on the proj ects' priorities in the PPL. This Five Year Work Program will then be used by the 
Metro Plan Orlando staff in preparing the FY 2019/20 • 2023/24 T!P in the spring of 2019. The process will begin again in 
the summer of 2019 with the development of the FY 2024/25- 2039/40 PPL. Once a project in t he PPL has been fully 
funded through const ruction in the TIP . it. is taken off the list. The projects remaining on the PPL can then be advanced to 
a higher priority, and new projects can eventually be added to the l ist. In addition, the ranking of a project on the PPL can 
be advanced more quickly if additional f unds f rom local governments or other sources are applied to that project. 

Page 3 of 31 Drafl: 0?/13/2019 



-...J 
w 

Regional Trail & Safe Route to School Projects 

The list of Regina! Trail projects in the PPL is shown on pages 26- 27. These include local and regional trail projects that 
can be used by cyclists and pedestrians for recreational andjor commuting purposes, on-street bicycle lanes, 
sidewalk improvements, particularly for safety purposes around elementary schools, and other projects that will 
improve overall bicycle and pedestrian mobility. 

Transit Projects 

The list of transit proj ects shown in the PPL on pages 30- 31 includes what are known as "premium transit" projects. These 
projects are defined by the Federal Transit Administration as "transit modes that provide higher comfort, capacity, speed 
and frequency than typical local bus operations or create a positive perception to users." Projects meeting this definition 
include commuter rai l, l ight rail , bus rapid transit (BRT), streetcars, etc. The PPL transit section also includes ongoing federal 
formula transit projects pertaining to the fixed-route bus service operated by LYNX, the loca l transit provider. Fixed-route 
bus service is not considered to be premium transit. 

MetroPian Orlando has adopted a policy of using up to 30% of its state DDR funds for the operation of premium transit 
projects beginning in FY 2020/21. In order to qualify for the DDR funds, the projects must be identified as cost feasible in 
the 2040 LRTP, and must have gone through either an Alternatives Analysis or similar analysis to evaluate measures of 
effectiveness, costs and benefits with study results being incorporated in the LRTP. The transit projects in the PPL are 
divided into four categories and ranl~ed separately based on the types of the projects and the status of the 
planning/feasibility studies for the projects. The four transit project categories include: 

Category A: Projects identified as premium t ransit in the 2040 LRTP with adopted transit planning/feasibility studies: 
eligible for DDR operating funds 

Category B: Projects requiring planning/feasibil ity studies; premium t ransit status and eligibility for DDR opera ling funds 
to be determined 

Category C: Enhancements to LYNX's fixed route bus system; not premium transit and not el igible for DDR operating funds 

Category D: Unranked ongoing federal formula transit projects; not premium transit and not eligible for DDR operating 
funds 

Page 5 of 31 Draft: 02/13/2019 



-..J 
.J::. 

Estimate d Funding Allocations 

There are four categories of funds that the projects in the PPL are candidates for. The main funding category is the federal 
Surface Transportation Program funds, which are shown by the funding code SU. The SU funds arc flexible and can be used for 
various types of surface transportation projects, including the highway, TSMO, bicycle and pedestrian and transit projects in the 
PPL. 

Due to this flexibi lity, MetroPian Orlando has a policy in place to divide the SU funds into percentages for these different types 
of projects. The policy for the SU funds in the FY 2023/24-2039/40 PPL is that these funds be allocated based on a percentage 
split of 32% for Multimodal Roadway & Complete Street projects, 30% for transit projects, 21% for TSMO projects and 17% for 
bicycle and pedestrian proj ects (including safe routes to schools). 

The ot her t hree categories of funds include District Ded icated Revenue (DDR) funds, National Highway System (NHS) funds and 
Transportat ion Regional Incentive Program (TRIP) funds. DDR fu nds are state funds, of which up to 30% can be used for the 
operation of premium transit projects as described on page 3. The remaining DDR funds are to be used to implement the 
priorities in the State Road project list in the PPL. 

The NHS f unds are federal fu nds primari ly used for projects on the interstate highway system, so the 1-4 projects in the PPL ar-c 
candidates for these funds. TRIP funds are state funds provided for the purpose of improving growth management planning and 
increasing available funding for regionally significant transportation facilities in regional transportation areas. Under this 
program, FOOT will provide up to 50% of the total cost of selected regional transportation projects, with the balance coming from 
local match funds. 

The fu nding al locations shown in the PPL are only for the f irst f iscal year of the document. Thus. the estimated SU. DDR, NHS 
and TRIP funding allocations shown below are for FY 2023/24. (These FY 2023/24 allocations were estimated by averaging 
the amounts of funding in these categories that were programmed during the previous five fiscal years. The actual allocations 
will vary from year to year.) 

The SU f unding percentage split, the fu nding allocations, and the prioritization methodology described above, will be subject to 
revision in developing future Prioritized Project Lists. 

Page 7 of 31 Draft: 02/13/2019 



-.J 
en 

l!.bbreviations and l!.cronyms 

FunciingSJl@gories 

DDR District Dedicated Revenue fun cis (State) 

FTA Federal Transit Administration funds 

NHS National Highway System funds (Federal)- used for interstate highway projects 

SU Surface Transportation Progrilm funds (Federal) - may be used for highwoy, transit, or cnhonccmcnl 
(bicycle/pedestrian, beautification, etc.) projects in urban areas of greater than 200,000 populotion 

TALU Tmnsportation Alternative funds (Federal)- used for bicycle ancl pedestrian projects 

TRIP Transportation Regional incentive Program funds (State)- used for regionally significant projecLs with 8 minimum 
of 50% in local matching funds l'equired 

PrQLe_ct Phases 

CST Construction 

PD&E Project Development and Environmental Study 

PE Pre!imin8ry En[1ineering (00sign) 

ROW Right-of-Way Acquisition 

Puge g of 31 lJr~1fl: Cl:Jjl3/70:L'J 



......, 
0) 

FOOT MPO Performance Project Re~Ponslble Project Project No~~ me'/ 

FMH Pt10rl~¥ ff Meri:~ure(s) JUr111idlotlon (s) ..:Coney· Typo Oeslgna tJon. 

.;.· ... 
2424848 & 1 Travef l lme/ Orange Co/ FOOT Widening 1-4 

4314561 s.rety/ CY...ceola Co. 

Fn~lght 

2425924 2 Tr8VCI T1me/ Sem1noleCo. FOOT Widening 1·4 

Stlf&ty/ 

Freight 

4084642• 3 Travel Time/ Voluslo Co. FOOT Widening 1·4 

Safety/ 

Frei(!ht 

'2012103* 4 rmvetnme; Poll< Co. FOOT Wtdenme 1·4 

Safety/ 
Frelcht 

' ' " . ~ ! ; 

s Ttavel Time/ FOOTOist 5 FOOT FreiC:ht / 1-4 .. Safety/ Safety 

Frolr,ht 

MetroPlan Orlando 
Prioritized Project List 

Interstate Roadwnv Projects 

From To 

WOICR532 W or SR S28/l3e8Chl1ne Expy. 
(Polk/Osceola Line) 

Eof SR 434 Semlnole/Volusla Co. Line 

SemlnOic/VOiu::ua Co. Una SR 412 m Volus1a Co. 

w of US 27 In Polk Co. w of CR 532 (Polk/Osccoto 

Uno~ 

Polk/Osceola Co. Line SomiOOIC/VOiuSI3 Co.l1ne 

Length 
Work Description 

(M I.) 

~6.45 Ultimate Cont•gurt~uon tor 
Gcnefal use & Managed Lanes 

~0.30 Ul t~rnate Cont1curaUon ror 

Geneml U:oo & Manaced l anes 

U1!1mato Coni i(!W(\tlon ror 

General Use & Manta(!Cd Lones 

Ultimate ConfiguratiOn for 

General Use & Mi)naced Lanes 

Construct Truck Rest Stops 

Phuse(s) PMses(s) Est Co:stor Est Year or Next 
Funded In TIP Un funded NextPN!so PllftSO 

AOW2017/l8· CST $ 1,/31,919,000 
2021/22 

PtHI181 ROW 202]/22 Rcma1n•ng now $ 4"12,061,000 

I CST 

P( 2016/17 ROW/CST $ s:m.ooo.ooo 

PE 2016/17 ROW/CST $ <136.000.000 

I 
PO&E/ PE/ l UD 
ROW/ CST 

*i\lthou'h outside the MetroP1an Orlando rcclon, the 1·4 Bcyood the Ultimate projects from the Semlnole/\lol~la Co. line to SR 472fn Votus1a County and f rom west of US 27 to tho Polk/Osceoto County Line In Polk County arc Included tn MerroPian Orlando'~ PPL for lnlormalion purposes in 0100, to show tile ent•rc tcnr.th of the 1•11 C~')'Ond the 
Ultimate Improvements. 

••This profcct would lnvolvo providing truck roc.t stop nreas with adequate capacity In suitable locations, either on 1-4 or In closo prmdmlty to l.J\ with convenient access. Loeation(s) to be determined In coordination w1th fOOT and local covcrnments. 

(Remainder of page intent ionally left blonk) 

Page 11 of31 
Draft: 02/13/2019 



MetroPlan Orlando 
Prioritize d Project Lis t 

Stj!te Roadway Proje c ts - Widening & GomQle te Stre~ts 

FOOT I MPO Performance Protect ResDOnslblo Proleol Pro feet~ me 1 
From To 

Lonntn wort< OescnpUOn I Ph&t e(s) I Phuetl(•) I Est. Coslol l Est.. Yc•r Of Nola 
FM ~ Prfortlr~ Measure(s) JurMictloo(s) ~ency Type Oeslj:nat~m (MI.) l='undod tn nP Unfunded Nel!tPM .. . ..... 

239?03-8 I - I Travetlime,/ Ofance eo. FTE/ FOOT W•den•ne SR50 Chuluota Ret SR520 Wldon to6L&oes now • 7,80'.)0...0 

Fre1g1u CST .. I" 4~5000 

' 22.~.000 

431001·1 I 1 I Sy:>tem PertOt'mooce Sem•noto Co. FOOT TSMO SR43-t at RonalD Rcacan OIV<t - lnletSCCIIOn ltnDUWCIIlCniS now ~ 1.oooooo 1 F'v,.Xt~t :l4 

CST i_.!;.!l!MLO'JQ 

s 6000000 
41ii•oJ.3 I 2 I Solety/ i Osceolo Co/ FOOT WIOCnltlC John Young PI<W\. ~asant H1lt Rd. Ponacc St 2 .36 W•<ten 10 61.3nes & FJyOvcr I now. rv 2021122 I CST ' J9 ~00.000 J --fV:tO:t3t2-11 

f>ystcm Pcrformonco Klss•mmeo ot Prcnsont H1U Rei. 

435731·1 I 38 I Safety I Ofanceeo. 0tMC6 Complete Street sn 434/A.Iai•Yl' tr. Research Pkwy. MCCutiOchRd 1 .6/ Conte'J(t Sens•t~ve tmprO¥CmCOts 1 rt:·f'V'20HV19 csr •. G 6llO c..>O 1 · '<20131'·' 

1135731·1 I 31> I Safety I Oran(!o Co. Ornnco Comploto Street SR 434/fl.lttlfYD 'lr, Omllenccr Pk....y. Hosearct1 l:lk.wy 0.99 ContOKI S<ln<IIIIVC tmprOVCil•Ont5 I PfiHli'IUIC. FY 2016/1' I pt ,- S.SOO.OO'J I rv:i'ol~ll" 
nQo.v ;c;r 
~= 
' 22.000.000 

S3foty/ WtnterPark FOOT Com~to Street SR 151600 & US 1 f/92 NoriOikAve. MooroeSC. 2.20 Construct mcd•<~nst•mprCNO Pl· fY 2018/19 ·oow \ voo.ooo I rt70'2.:Jn [j 
System Pctformnncc OtkO f1 Ped CST ~ 

·; 6 .!00.000 
1137174·1 & 5o S&fCty/ Or once Co./ FOOT Widomnc sn 53!- U$102 SO 536/WOriO Cwucr Of. 3.~ Wtctcn to 6 Lanes f>W.£ • t-Y 2019/20 PE \ 2.700.000 I .. 1"1'20'2317·' 
437175-1 System PorlOI'monce Osceoi&Co. 

n~,CST -~·!lO.OOO 
~ 6.100.000 

437174·1.& 5o Saf~y/ OJenco eo.; FOOT CompletO $1reet SRSl!1 SR !).36{WorkJ Center Or. 1-4 1.50 Q)fUekt Sens•tr.oe lmprQIIemCOtS tJO&L. rv 2019/20 PE • :? 100.000 I F"r20Z3/21 
437175·1 System Performt~nce Oscooll'l Co. nowrcsr !L_~ 

' 6.100000 
437200·1 6 System PerrorrMnce o--..cooaa eo. FOOT Widcnmc us 17/92 Po k/Osceoll'l Co. llllC 1.900' W of PotnCiliM Otvo 4.53 W•C1cn to 11 Lanes POl.( ...... 2019/20 

... 
~ PI: \ n ooooo·j F"''7023"/21f . 

~;CST ~ J <OQQ()O 

• 6.100000 
S81Cty I OrMCO Co. I FOOT I Wlclcn•nc I US 441/0ranco IUO!i;Om Tr. 

I 
Gore St. 

I 
30th Sl. 

I 
1.321 Pe<le<.>tuan lmprc:wemcntc; 

I ... "'20Ul/19 I I!Ow " · :Jltl ooo-j - st1o.!on , 
Podestfl&n Enhnnccrnont CST ~---!\.SW.99D f'\'2023 '2• 

Phase'" . 5 •021)<)0 

(Remainder or page Intentionally left. blanl<) 

Page 13 of 31 Draft: 02/13/?019 

-..J 
-..J 



-..J 
CX> 

~OOT 

n.u 

' . " 
-

-

-

-

-

MPO 

Pncmlytt 

... 
24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

PerlortNI~ 

Maesure(s) .. 
Sllfety/ 

System Pofformanco 

Safety/ 

sv->tem PcrfOI'rMneo 

sarety/ 

System Perlormanco 

Salety'/ 

System Perfommnco 

Safety/ 

Sy51em PerlonMncc 

-

Profec.t Rupon•lb'- ._. 
Jurl\ldltt/on(s} ~""" Typo 

5eminoMCo. FOOT TSMO 

Orun~o co. rlS·Mplan 

Sem<.-co. FOOT tSMO 

Oranco eo. ITS·MPIM 

Osceola Co. 
Scmlnoto Co. FOOT Complete 

l.onewood Street 

Semlnoto Co. SeminoktCo. WkJentnc 
FOOT 

Ocoee MetroPian Complete Street 

FOOT 

MctroPlan Orlando 
Prioritized Project List 

State Roa.dwav Projects ·Widening and Comn!Qie Str~.ts 

Protect Name( 
From To 

t.encm 
Oes.lfTiaUon (MtJ 

N:tlve Artet•tti Mene~4"f''l0nl· Ofl3nc10 nternatiOOftl Atrpott , .• 18.02 

SR 436 I Scmotnn Olvd. 

ACtiVO Attenat Mana(!<fment· US192 SA46 36.50 

U$17/92 

sn 11.34 R<mco Line Rd . Myrtlo St 2.10 

SR434 SR417 MltCI'ICII Hammock Rd. 3.60 

sn 438/Sitver S.a r Rd. $R 429 OlufOI'dAve. 1.30 

. 

(Remamder or pace Intentionally left blank) 

Page 15 of 31 

Work Oescrrpllon Pf\Ose(S} PM'"'(S} Est.COSiol Est Year Of Ne~ 
Funcseo tnnP Unlul"'dee Nc:APIIO"' """"' 

Act•ve At1Cn&t Man8cemcm - ·csr - 1---~~ =--~312• ; ·-· --f()( a s•cn•fk:anuyconcested 
cormlof m the MctroPtan Regoo 

Actrve Altcnal Manacement - CST ~- -- E'!!l·~ ... I'Yl02=.t:_~ -: 
for a SICfl•lictlnUy con(!C'Stcd 

eornOOr m the MctroPian Rec10n 

Comext Son5mve lmptovcrncnt5 Plannmc · rv 2016/17 PC ·. 2.ooo:ooo ·mo~Jt:'t! .. 
CSI ~ l"lQOO QOO 

' lit 000.000 
Wtdcn to 4 Lanes Plann•nc. • fV 2018/19 PC \ 1000.000 rY2023f2·r · 

O()l.o\1 ·CST ~QQOJlOO 

~ 35000000 
Context Sen5U•Ye lmf)rOYetncnt5 ~nmnc • fY 201{1/19 P£ ( ' 975.000 r-"'f~02:!/14 

CSI - ~oool 
, 6.175.000 1 - Towl io Cornplcto TiP PtoJ~ls lind ~Je111 StnYcl.lr .. '182.301,.110 

Draft: 0/ / 13/2019 



-.,J 
c.o 

FOOT 
FM# 

I MPO 
PrlorityH 

... 
31k 

32 I 

33 I 

34 I 

35 I 

36 I 

37 I 

38 I 

39 I 

40 I 

41 I 

., I 

43 I 

44 I 

- I Orlando 

- I Osceola Co. 

OmneoCo. 

- I Or&JO(!O Co. 

- I LongWOOd 

- I Sanford 

- I Orllmdo 

- I Orsnce Co. 

I Seminole Co 

- I Orange CO. 

- I Oran(!oCo. 

- I Or,.nnoco . 

- I Oran.:o co. 

- I Orange Co. 

Projoct 
TYOO 

Comploteo Stte(tt 

Transit 

I FOOT I Roadway I 

TSMO 

ITS- M plan 

TSMO 
ITS·Mplan 

I FOOT I Complete Stroot 

I FOOT I Complete Street I 

I FOOT I Comploto Street I 

I FOOT I TSMO I 

I FOOT I SldCWellk I 

I FOOT I TSMO I 

I fOOT I TSMO I 

I FOOT I TSMO I 

I F~- fComp!(uc Stroot ( 

I FOOT I Complete Street I 

M etroP lan Orlando 
Prioritized P roje ct Lis t 

SLi\1~ R2;1dlll!!.Y l!l2 i!l~ l::> - Widening ;md C2m!lle!e Slx!lels 

Project Nome 1 
From To Work OescrlpUon 

• Ocsl"noUon 

SR 436 SR50 OIA Conte)lt sen srtrve Improvements 

Prcmiuni Trunsit onCrauons 

SR 526 / Rob!nSOI\ St. I Rosalind Ave. I M3{!ulro Blvd. 1.89 Conte xt :>ensurvo tmpmvcmcms 

Adapttve Sl(!nal Sr.tem Avalon Rd Columbia Ave. 16.32 Install ;,m A.claptrvo 

us 192 Phase It Signal System 

Adaptrve Signal Syr.tem Forsyth Rd. Avalon Pl'ltk Olvd. 7.85 tn~tnll an Adaptrve 
SR 50 Siena! System 

us 1.7/92 Doc Track Rd. Snepard Ra. 2.:i0 COntext Scns1t1ve Improvements 

us 17/92 I SR 417 I SR 46/lSl St. I 2.so I Context Sensil1ve lmorovcmcnts 

SA 527/0rangoMc. I SR50 I Pnoceton St. I 1.30 I Context Sens1t1ve lml)fovemcnts 

SR 500/US 44 1. I nt P1e<J'nOOI Wekiva Ad. I - I - I Add Turn Lanes 

1 1 SR 46 I mfla post 4 .790 m11e post 5.570 0.7~1 Fill in Sidewalk t..aps 
mila post 7.412 mile po5t 6.441 1.02 

SR <124/Edgcwatc; Or. I tit $11 423/Lee Rd. I I I Add 1 urn Lanes 

SH 438/Sdvcr Stot -nd. I l'lt tlawassec Ra. I - I - I lmptovo mtersectoo 

SR 4~R/Silvqr Star Ra I nt P1oe HillS R(l. I I I lrnptovu ln\etHCIIQfl 

$R 4213/Aiomrt Avfl, I SR436 I Oren1,~/Semmo1e Co. Lln.o 1-.so I Context Sen~!h"o lmpr(Womems 

SR 482/Sand Lake Rd. I sn 500/US 441 I SR 527/0rancc Ave. I 2.3o I COntext sensitive Improvements 

Page 17 of 31 

I Ptlose(s} I Phases(s) I Cst.Cost or J Est. YearofNext 
r-unded In TIP Unfunded NortPMse Phase 

t~annrnc • fY 2018/19 P€ • ..100,~ 
CST TOO 

$ 4 ,100.000 

annool operntJnc, ·> $ 2,100,000 

I 
Ptannrnc • FY 2016/17 I'( • 1,417,500 

CST l!lQ 
$ 1.417,500 

CST $ 2.4!>9.000 

I - I csr I s 1,122,000 

I - I PO&E $ 1,500,000 

flE/ROW/CST l__G.QOO.QQ!l 

$ 7,500,000 
-r Ptann.nc. FY 2016/17J PL $ 2,100,000 

CST l ll2QQOOO 
$ 13,300.000 -r I PE ~ 975,000 

CST s 5 2QQOOO 
$ 6,175,000 

I I POt.E ' 100,000 
PE/ ROW/ CST L_4Q!l.QQ!l 

s 500,000 

I I 
rt: $ 285,000 

CST ~ l 425 000 
s 1,710,000 

I I PO& t: • 100.000 
PE/ ROW I CST l 4QQ 000: 

$ 500,000 -r PE • 100.000 
CST L_4Q!l.QQ!l 

• ~00.000 

PC ' J.OO,OOO 

CST ! '!lll!lll2 
• 500,000 

PC ' 1,12!5,000 

CST s 6000000 

' 7,1.25.000 
I - PE $ 1,725,000 

CST 1.__2.200.000 

$ 10,925,000 

Draft: 02/13/2019 



co 
0 

rnor 
I ~=· I nA• 

41412t5 1 I 1 I 

P•rlor.w.r.c~t 

Me.nure{.t) 

~fety/ 

Multfmodol con. 

S!lofC'Y/ 

Muffimodttl Con. 

Safety/ 
Mulltmodel Con. 

Safety/ 
Multtmodal Con. 

Stitely/ 
MUitlnlOdal Con. 

Projoel I .... I -roo• I Jurl!wlibt/on(o) Stetu• ,.,... 

O..ttlndO . .., A:ooowey 

needy 

St. Ctoud ..• Oike/Po<l 

Ready 

St. Cloud 4-P BtkO/ PC<! 
ncacty 

KiS~mmee 4·P BtkO/Pcc:t 
Reaoy 

Loogwood 11·1) OikO/ Pcd 

Rea<ty 

M etroPlan Orlando 
Prioritized Project List 

M tU.ti.mo.d.al..s,yst emJ>..x.oj edc::Jo n~ny_&_ColnDl.ci.a.S1l:OJ'J.s 

ProleetNalme / from I To I~·~" I o../onollon ( MI.) 

Ed&OWtUet Of. S!JflOtseftpc Lftkevtew St. PorSt. 
L50 I 

St. Ooud S~'kS Oft~:=~==tAve. l L4:J I 

17th St. Sldcw&lkS Canoo Crock MtSSOI.Jn Ave. 1 o .2o 1 

Downtown Krss.lmmee Stteetscape .JO"'nYoonc~ US192 -r L451 Emmett/ &oadWa;) Matn 

LonJ!WO()d Sooth Pfod~strlan 0.1 Churcll Ave. & Worron Avo. -· I 100 I 
Comdofs Segments 1 & 4 

(Rcma nder of page 1ntcnt1onally left blank) 

Pogc 19 of 31 

Wotit DMt"~llon 
PIWC(S) 

P,..,.l ) Unfunded I <5LCostor I Est. Year Of 
runoed In TIP l'<e.<! PilO ... NenPilOS< 

SUec\$Cbi)C & OCCytle & PE • >Y 2021122 CSt { ~.ooo.ooo 1· P('102'J!'ll 
pedcsutan tmpfovements LOCal Fttt\CIS 5 _____6.l)Q!)Jlll0 

' 10000000 
S.OCWaltts pt_. F\' 2021/22 C'>l 1.2:'~)0001-~ "Fv76JJ/~t1 

SI(ICWillhS I Pt. · FV 20:l1J22 I CSl __ .r - ,~~~.000 1 - ~ 1·'00'13/:1'1 

Slreetscepe & DeeycSo & 1 PE · FY202l/22 

I 
<:Sf I ·4~~~ I f-VJJ/'16. 

I)COCstt.an •mrwovements UX.,I Functs ~ 
-; 5000000 

$1(t4Jwlllk s 1 PE. rv 2021122 CS I <t:!oOOOOI f YJ&:t31,!4 

Draft: 02/13/2019 



FOOT MPO Performance 'Project 4-P Project 
FMN Prlofll)'' McasiJro(S) Jurts<llcllon(s) Status l}'po 

. . ' - ~ .. ... . . . ~· . .. .. ' 
16 Orante Co. Need Comp&ete Street 

Of1nndo Appllc:otlon 

4379321 17 Kissimmee Need Complete Street 

Application 

16 Oviedo Need BlkO/ Pod 

AppHcotlon 

19 Kbslmmce 4-P Roadway 

Ready 

20 Lonewoo<l Need Complete Street 

NJpllcatlon 

21 - Need Complete Street 

NJpllcallon 

22 ()rlondo 4-P fllke/-
Ready 

23 SOmlnOIO co. Need Complete St reet 

Application 

co 

M etroPlan Or lando 
Prioritized Project List 

MultUnocl n l Sy Rt orn P r o j oct s -Roa d way & C omplo t (') St r c o ts 

Project Name I From To 
Length 

Wori<De-..criptlon 
llcsJCMtlon (MI.) 

VIrginia Of •• Forest Avo. US 17 /92/Miii:S Ave. Bennett Rd. 2.10 Context Sens.llvc Improvements 

&Corrine Or 

Ccntrt~ l Avo. Olko ~ 'Peel Martin l uther K1nr. Bl'ld . Donecan Avo. 1.50 Context Scn<:lll\10 lmprovemonts 

Pino Avo SklCWD!IeJ Conneclinc to 0.60 Sklcwalks 

Cross Scmioolo Tra11 

ColumbiD Avo. Complo~Strc<lts N. t-oo(!l.'lnd ONd. Dyer Blvd. 0.55 OIC)'CIO t. Pcdcstuan 

lmptovcmems 

warren Ave. Complete Street St. Lllurent St S. MIIWOO St. 0.67 Context Scns.tiYC Improvements 

Corrkkw Study 

South Park & MICh&el G0dden US 1,41/ Main St. Qevetand Rd. Context Sen*-"tiVC tmprtwements 

Complete Strocts Study SPark Ave. BtadsMWRd. CorridOr Study 

SW Oflando Blc)'clc/Pt."'fk!Strien SR406 Sand Lake Res tmf)rOWl Safety & Mullln'IOO&I 

Stu<Jy ConnectMty 

Orancc Otvd. SR46/251hSt. Monroe Rd. 3.14 Context Scns•tive tmplOvemems 

(Remainder of page Intentionally left blank) 

Page 21 of31 

l'tlase(S) 
Phase{•) Unfundod 

Est.COStol fsL Year or 
Funcle<f In TIP Nextl'tlO>c NextPha~ 

Ptannlng • FY 2017/ll I'C $ 1,575,000 

CST L_flAllQ.OOO 

$ !)J)75,000 

Plllnn•n(!- FY 2017/U PL ' 1,125,000 

CST S-li.OOO.OOO 

• /,125,000 

I'C $ 50.'166 

CST J_____l5().00Q 

'Sl00,4G6 

- I'( • 412,500 

CST $---2.200.000 

• 2.612,500 

- Study ' 300,000 

I'E/CST J____J,~ 

' 3,482.SOO 

- Stu<Jy ' 250,000 

I'E/ CST 

' 150.000 

Stu<Jy ' 300.000 

PE • fY 2018119 now TOO 

CST s__u.m.ooo 
$ 12.000,000 

Draft: 0:>/13/20] 9 



00 
N 

FOOT .... I p=·l 
iiJ • 

6 I 

9 I 

10 

u I 

t7 I 

13 I 

14 I 

PerfOtmance 
Measure( a) 

SftfO\Y 

Safety 

Sntcty 

$3toty 

S81oty 

Solety 

Sllfety 

5tltcty 

Salety 

~·'•t!~ 

Stlfety 

Salety/ 
Trover T!""" 

I Pro~ .., Projl!ct I Jurlsdit.tlbn(l) Sta!U9 Type 

Orancoeo. Need TSMO 

Osc-Co. Applie&ttOn 

SominoleCo. 

I ()r....ccoJ.!' co. NOOd TSMO 
Appllcat1on 

I OronttoCo. Need TSMO 
Application 

I O<onceeo. 1 Need TSMO 
ApphcaUon 

I Oranr.eeo. I ... TSMO 
Ready 

I 0.13000 I ..... TSMO 
AQolicatiOn 

I 0.13000 I ..... TSMO 
ADPUcation 

I Ornnce Co. I ..... TSMO 

ArlC>heatoon 

I Otllnge Co. I 4.P TSMO 

Ready 

I SCmlnoie eo.l NOOd TSMO 

AoPitelltion 

I s-rTliOQIP 01 I N_, T~MQ 

Af)DiictiUon 

I or~~n.~~.c-.o. I """" TSMO 

App!lC;li!On 

1 0SCCOt8 CO. Neeo TSMO 
Af)plk:t1Uon 

I Ot"Mi:CCo. N<><•<l TSMO 
Application 

Metro Plan Orlando 
Prioritized Project List 

Multimodal S.l!.§!cm Projects- Transyortation Systems M<tnageme nt !:!!. Oyerations 

PrOjOCtNatno / I FrQm I ro ~~~~' Wo<'<QcscoPioon I Pho::o(s) 
ll'toa>e{s)Un!unOC(J I Cst. Cost of I Est. 't'earol 

OeorllNtro• n,ndt!(f In T1P ~xtl'hase -. ...... 

T T 
TraffiC Si£MI Cool'tiM',..uon AoCIOO Wide -

I 
CoorChtlo!IIO tl81hc fi.ICMI I PE llf'ldcfway r: -~-~~··1=--..oouooal J..YJ.VJ.;st.l#! 

t•m•nc on vauous corrk'JOrs 

County MapUIJe Tra ... el T·r~ System Counl}IWI<ie - IrS AOapttVC System (Qwr>ment - PE \ t OO.UOO I FY202.U2<11 
Wost US 192 PeciTraJC CST ~ l QOOQQO 

~ l.lOO.OOO 
nou5o lld, at unlvorstty Blvd. I I tmprOYO tnttHSCCt•on I I CST _j\ l 00t.OJ1 1 rv.:>O~JI~' 

Town tenter OIVO. at lcwn Loop Btvo. I - I I Improve lll!CfSCChOn I - I CST I' uo 3~3 I r.v7073.'2L4 

wtntcr G~roen Vtno'e•w:s Rct. tu LakO Sf'IOOn Reserve BIVCI. tmf)I(Wt'; mtetsect~' - pt_ ~ tnoooo 1 N?O?J!?:f -
CST L--..12!).00!) 

• 500.000 
Pedcstnon Trone Sll(MIS lhtOU(!t'ICUt Oty 01 OMndO AI». Trallc S.CMI System PC • J..OOU.OOO I FtX>~3t"4 

CST L --...l..OO!l.ll 
s 3000.000 

OowOen lld lake ~tnct lll/ - tns toll r .IX"t' Opc,c cau.e I'!: . ~- ,~.ooo -I f"r_20~~:?4 
R&~l Park Blvd. CST 1----100J)OO 

s 215.000 
CUrryfOfORc-. &t f tXWtockMIChf!O Tr. IIOf)fOYO tllletsettiOO PC ' :11:.0 SJ•J r~ona•T 

CST ~ fi)2 Q..,~ 
s 014 S6d 

Wyndham Ulkes 8t•a at Alhettoo Dr. - lmprOYC uoonoabolrt - l'f 'J -~Ot.._l'l)~ ~ ~ rv~-o::~~t! 
CST ::----L.ill~ 

' 1.781 ... 37 
noo euc YkO rta OOOd Rd. T uSkav.lla Rd. 0 .70 L• te M tum ta ncs ~!.. ' ISOOQ<J.I rv::0:22t:t4 

lhlV &Mn'!Jt,n I)\IJ"~/11> I - h,<.I (II I! Cf'_l'l/"11 <;;;P~fPrl'!ll!ll""'•..,..l•r:.'f'" - ... ~ ~""'• .ooril r'(](J2_'•• ··tt 

CST ~ 

' l OO OOO 
CCl'V Ucl)tlnlilt(.Ml Covnlywldtt tns uou CC IV tH ~"\1"'"'' tnrQrsecttOtl!f .rc. ' :tf.I<IOOO I rf':XIJ:r~··• 

-:~r .. '--_ ~.CQ..OOO 

~ GOOOOO 
A.Oaotrvc Srcnet S\'Siefl'l Oyer Btvo. f iOI'ICICfS Turnl)lkC tnstau an Aci8Dt•11e PE- FV 2010/19 ~1 •. 450000 I --rY20:!:,·~• 

Osce04~ Pt~rkwe~ C•Cilllt Cyate m 

S titMI Cnt>lnOt UP!.,Ifl'IC165 Countywide Ut>&tri'IOO 20 ~·gn.;,l cnbiOOI'i wtm I -
UPS cabinets 

I;_ C<.T I"" . <600!"""_1 fY2fn3/1"' 

TotallO COmplele TIP PtOjnet$ and Nect SU\ Year • \ 6.066.H2 

Page 23 of 31 Draft: 02/ 13/2019 



(X) 
w 

FOOT 

FM• 
MPO 

"""""'" 
•.• : .. 

30 

31 

32 

33 

34 

35 

36 

31 

Performnnco 

Mcta.ut-<a) 

.. ... . ..,. 
P,ojoct 4-P Pn>)oct 

Jurisdictton('a) Su.tus Typo 

. . 
0<\0ndo Nee<> TSMO 

AppliCation 

OH!HldO Nee<J TSMO 

AppHcoUon 

OrrmcoCo. Neeo TSMO 
Application 

Or.ceoto eo. Need TSMO 

Application 

Scmlnolo Co. Nee<l TSMO 

APOlk:atlon 

Or~noo Neeo TSMO 

'""""'"lon 

0<\0ndo - TSMO 

Aoollcatlon 

Oranceeo. Nee<1 TSMO 

AQpllcation 

MetroPlan Orlando 

Prioritized Project List 
Multim odal Svdom Proiocts- T ransporta tion Systoms Mn,n:~.aomont & Onor ;,tions 

PtOjoct.Nonw/ 
from To "'"""' workDescriptlon 

DNi:Miion (MlJ 

Ade!XIYO SICOOI !Jy$tcm DoCCY Creek Rd. SR 417 tn.stou en Mttpt•ve 
Loke None. S•crmt System 

MDP'tve Slcnnt t.)':stcm tnc.ern.etlonat Or. Vmclana Rd. tnstell tm Adaptive 

Universal 01\!d. Sl(!nal Sy&tcm 

OJcyclo & Poo~trlen IMOoltlhiiC ITS TOO TOO lnSI£'11 t.McyciO 8M J>(l'C1CStuan ITS 
Unlvorslty or Contml r lorldo tochooloclcs 

Actapt!\10 Signal !)r-ltcm us 17 Cyp(css Pkwy. ln:J!Btl ftll Adapi!VO 

Polnclona Pk...y Slcnel System 

S.('JV.II Phase and Tlrtunc Countywide Ocvctopment or traveler tnlorm&tiOn 
(SPnns.rvlcos system!! 

City ot Orlando Parkin£: MfiMCemcnt Cl~lde PafklnC Manar.ement System 

TMC & SUnRall CootdtMhon C.fyWi<Je AuiOINIUC CMCfCency 1 matnteneance 

/ntcrnah0•\01 Or Conllnentel Gateway MeOtan moddJCDIIOnS and IUfO &aneo;: 
YtotktGateway 

(Rematnder of page intentionally left blank) 

Page 25 of 31 

Phon(s) 
Phase(s) Unfunded 

EsLCOstof Est. Year()( 

ru~'lnllP ~)llr"tww- ...:.wt.PheH 

C:,T • JOu.ooo 

- CST • 45~.000 

- Stu(ty ' 100,000 
CST L___I..Qll!l.QOQ 

$ 1.100.000 
CSl $ ·)1,000 

CST $ 100,000 

Stuff)' s 100,000 
CST )__.I.QQQ.QQQ 

s 1,100.000 - S1U<ly $ 100.000 

PO&l ' J~.ooo 

Pf.JR()Y.I/CST roo 
$ 35.000 

Draft: 02/13/:?019 



o:> 
~ 

. 
FOOT 
FMO 

. ·- ;:} • 

-

-

-

-

-

-
-

MPO Por10t'l'T'I0nce 

""""IY" Measure(•) 

. .... 
"" 
90 -
9c -

9d 

10 Uet100al Tu:ul Gap 

11 -

12 -
13 -

14 -

1!> -

"' 
1/ 

18 

19 -
20 

21 

22 

23 -
24 

2~ -

P,oject 4-P Project 

JurbdlctJon(a) etatus. Type 

Kissimmee ...... --Krsstmmoc Nood 
APC)IIcatJon 

Klsslmrl"'CO Need 

ApplicoUon 

Orango CO. 4-P 
neody 

Oranco Co. 4.P 

Ready 

O.O.ndo ...... 
Application 

Cl!lsselbCfry 4.P 
RcGdy 

K15s•mmec ... p 

Roady 

Altamonte Sprmgs Need 
Application 

0rBnC6' CO. •. p 

Ready 

Sem•nole Co. 4.P 

Ready 

Klss•mmoo Neod 
APC)IIcatlon 

KiSsimmee Need -
Application 

KIS,jnlmoo •·• -
A~ndy 

Osceola Co. •• p 
neady 

C8ss.etbouy -Appllcoloon 

Alt.Dmonltt 5PI'M"'I,!S- -APC)IIcatlon 

CIISSOiberty NooO 

Application 

Ctl5301bort)' Need -
Application 

Seminole Co. Need -
ADP!Ietltlon 

MetroPlan O rland o 
Prioritized Project Lis t 

Multimodnl System Projects - Reuional Trail & School Mobility Projects 

Proje<:lNDtne/ from To 
lonath 

Work Description 
Oeii~UM (MI.) 

5ntO~ Croek lrt.t~l Yetn Connectof - Sl\8100 Uso Path 
Phllse2b$o:Juth 

Shingle CreekTrlUI Osccota Pkwy. Shd1ed lt:)O Petti! 

Phase 2c North 

Shlncto Cr'eeklrwt Bndi.\) over Osccota Pkwy. - ShOte(l USO Path 
PhRW2dNOf'th 

Shingle Creei<Tmil Alhambra Or. OlcJ Winter Garden lkl. 1.25 Short-<llJ<'..e Polh 

""""'" 
West Orang(\ Trull Rotk Sprme,s Rd. Kelty Patk & WukiYa 6.00 S""'Od U<..o l)em 

Phose4 WOic:h Rd. Intersection Sprin(!S State Park 

Or&anoo Soulht:est Tmtt &.4Cdie81Ctt)'Ama - 1.40 Shared lJ5(, l)ttth 

Central Cassdberry Hll)f.CUS Rd. ot SR 436 Mani!OkJfl<J.8l 1.02 Sharoo USo Path 
Connectivity lmprCMYT~Crtts S. Winter Parle Or. 

TOhO V81ondn Tr•ill!ndce us 192 South s•de ot us 192 0 .13 Share<! Uso Puttt Otitlt.'C 

AIIOrnonto Sprint.~ Ea'Jt·West SOtltfl04t1 WekiVa Tra•t Altamonte Sprmt;:o J.10 SllttfUCI USu j )<.JUI 

Troft Connector "t SDnlanelo Pork SunRAU Station 

Houzons W~4. T•ti•l uouzons Wost neciOMt West Omn co Part(,/ 7.411 Slimed tr...u Ptlth 
Park/Tiny Rd. Wlndcrmero Rd. 

CE WllliOill"'.AO Ud ·r rad/ ~nat Semtnato I CR 427 (ROOdkl nocan utw.) 2.44 !>hated Use P<tlh & ~lk 
lonewood HUis Skltwalk Wekiva Tmn 

Downtown tOssuromee Path US192 Martin Luther KtnC OMI. 0.45 Shllrt:.-d l..kt:P.tt/1 
Connect« 

lrT'IOfY CUnat Tr<'lll South John Younc ~wy. Sh•nciO Ctoek THut 0.40 Sh8tcd ll'..o Poth 

Ceuou St. 131cyc!e/Pe<Jeslfinn OQn.,g4n A,vP tnar.~ef AvtJ. 1.~ $1~•·1fo U':.ct l~alll 
hnl)tOYilmdflt Pul1l 

NeoCil}' Trail LOJp Neptune Rd. us 192 3.80 Sh810<1 Usa Poth/SiCiowJ!k 

~frll,. AICef\Ston Of. tnteera Lakes Ln 0.40 ShlltOO U:.tt foldlh 

bff430E..st SH 434 

Pedestrian Undef~s 
Ncwth bt. o.ao Sh.lt16d ~ f~t1tll Vl\ol.loutp..t~~ 

Kowannee T1e11 UL t:b:»:;>el CH)ttk UIVd, ~IJ)'t>huttUd. 0..30 M~om.tc:I V!.ttPotll 

Noflh Wmtct POri< Onvo Trml N. Ttll)lot Utko Dt. N. wmwr Po1k 0 1. 1.00 Stl.trf'd u-... o P.tlh 

SCm•nore Wek~ ~R 434 & SR 436 
Trail Ovcrpnss."5 

- Shcm."<l usc Patt1 Ufi<Jces 

Page 27 of 31 

Phaco(s) Est Cost of E!ot Venrof 
F'unded In nP Ph.1se(s) Unfunded 

NoxtPIItlco Nex!Pha~ 

PE 2016/11 CST • 7.782.1bU 

Pl201b/ll CST • u.ooo.ooo 

P( 2016/l/ CSI • 10.~99./GU 

l'l $ t>84,b(J4 
OOW/CST .1._____3..5_<15.021 

• 4,229,Gf\S 
- '"' • !>00.000 

CST 1..___.3.500.000 
$ 4,000,000 

PI • 200.000 
CST ~ ZZ:z!lQQQ 

$ 3.000.000 - CSl • 1,728.900 

- Pl. $ 290.100 
CST l__lOJ.lOQ.O!Xl 

• 10,200,190 
CST $ 4,000,000 

- PC • 1.142,62l 
CST I 1500000 

• ~.642.627 
~T • 2,JCJ9,1W 

- PC • 41.~ 
CST ~OO.OQ!l 

$ 1117,500 - "" < >0.000 
CST L__.l50.!X:'Q 

~ 200.000 .... • >00.000 
C:iT ~ • 4.000.000 
CST • 1,187.300 

- CM • ~O.OCJO I 

.... • nOCJ.OW 
CST $ 7,000,000 

• 7,600,000 
C"-..i l • <1~.000 

- CC)1 s 1,12!.>.000 

- l't • 2.ooomo 
rlOW/CST $ t!),!iOO,OOO 

s ?1.500.000 

Draft 02/13/201!> 



2 
c 

"' :0 
<t= 
.2 
-"'=' 

"' '" "' c 
0 

:,::; 
0 

c "' 
Q) 

N 
g, .,_, 

.~ 
ro 
"-

Q) 
'all 

"' Q. 

Ul :c c 

85 



CX> 
CJ) 

FOOT 
FM~I I' MPO I Perf or monee 

Prlority t~ Measure{~) 
I Pr*ct I ~P TOP/DDR 

Jurisdiction(~) Status Conslgtoni 

LYNX I Nood ve:.;ves 
Applicouon 

LYNX I Need Yes/ TBO 

Applicat ion 

LYNX I Nooa Yes/ Yes 
AppllcaUon 

LYNX I Need Yes/Yes 

Application 

LYNX Neea Yes/Yes 

ApptlcoUon 

Alt Springs Need Yes;vcs 

casselberry Appl tcntion 

Longwood 

Mnitland 

LYNX I Need Yes/ TBD 

Appllcotlon 

LYNX I Nood Yes/ TOO 

Application 

Ol'ango Co. I Nee<~ YOS/ TBO 

ApplicaUon 

Orange Co. I Need Yes/ TOO 

Applicat ion 

Oranr:oco. I Need Yes/ No 
Apptlc8tlon 

Kissimmee 1 Nee<l Yes/ No 
Appl ication 

LYNX 1 Need YCS/ No 
Application 

LYNX I Need Yes/No 
Appncation 

MetroPlan Orla ndo 
Prioritized Project List 

Transit Projects 

Project Namo I Project DesCription I DeSignation 

SunRalt Pnese 3 Pro)ec' Development, Oesicn & ConstrUCtion for Relt connoc11on f 1om tho Sunfl&ll 

Main Une south or the Sand LBke Road station to OtA. 

OIA COnnector 8flT froro Orlando International Airport to thO CoovcntiOn Center. 

PO&Efuncted In fY2011/18. 

US 192 Corridor Project Development. Desien & Construction for ORT on US 192 

from US 27 t o US <141. Project development funded In FV 2017/16. 

State Rood 50 Conldor PrOJCC::t Dovclopmcnt. Dcslcn & Construct ron for BRT on Sfl 50 from Powers Drtve 

to GoldenrOd Rd & ExP"ess Bus system from Downtown Orlando to UCF. 

Altemativo Anafy.;is with e selected LPA was adopted In March 2015. 
Downtown Or'lanCJ.:I ProjeCt DevelOpment, Design & Constructron for Non ll/South expansion or tt'l6 

LYMMO SyStem In downtown OrlilndO. LPA 3dopted In 2012. 

!'($ Enh&nceo l rens1t CoJ)Itel & opemuon of ellpansron ot ITS ennanced trarl srt scrv.co 

wrthin the 4-city ~ervlcc area. 
I 

SR 436 Corridor Premium l ransiV Feaslbill!ystudyor potential forms ot moortity(r.e •• BRT, UH, etc.) rn tl\e SR 436 

Complete St rcoL"l corridor from SA 43/l to Orlando International Airport. 

tnnovatioo Way Corrk'<lr Couoor Study of tho propos.ea tee ot an enhanced trnns1t system from 

lntermttonal Drive to the Innovation Way/lake Non&/Medlcal City/O:">Ceola Co. 
NE District corridor 

O rcutator System Study Stuay to evaluate potetl tlal technologres mat can DO uutrzoa m jmplementmc a 

circulator transportation system in the vicinity or the Ordnce Co. Convention 

Center, 

t-Onve Area Fixed TmnM Slt.Jdy to evaluate potential technoiO(!Ies that can oo utrlllecl •n rmptcmcntrng a 

Fixed Route Transit on tnternotionnt Orrvc. 

1-0r•vo Aloa Corridor Study of the proposed leg or an cnhanceo uans1t system trom 

lntermodal Station tntcmatbnal Drive to the Innovation Wlly/lako Noml/Medlcat City/Osceola Co. 
NE District COffi(IOr 

Klsscmmco Tronslt Cjrc;u'!l)tor Locftl bYs o tculetor connttCUng rt\OJQf •mp!Oyment ctmu:tr ~ I 
to Downtown Kissimmee ono SunRell. 

Gus Elcpanslon Capital funds tor ackhtlooa1 vehicles to Improve fiKed route transrt servrees 85 1 
Oporotlonl'l COA EnMr'l¢ement:s dotormlnod by tho LYNX Comprohet~slvo Ooornt•onol An~IY51~. 

Corr~or E)(press Sorvlto Expaf'lded bu5 sorvloo alone major corridors In tho rO{!IOr'l . The corrldots to be 1 
determined by LYNX Comprehensive OpcroUons Analysis. 

Page 31 of31 

Consistent with I PhB!:O(S) I Phase(s) J ~t Costof I ~t YC:'lrof 

TOP & DDR Policy t undcd in TIP Unfunded Next Phase Next Phase 

FrA/rOOT/Locat - PO/PE/CSl 1 $22~.ooo.ooc. 
0Jl(H811nC 

FTA/fOOljlocal - 1'0/Pf-/CST I i221,ooo,ooc 
0Mtai10f.! 

FTA/FOO-rjLOCfll PO/ PE/ CS I I UJ5.Goo.oo<: 
Opcratm[! 

nA. FOOl,LF - 1='0/PE/ CST I '!.<10.060,000 

Opcratrnc 

HA/FDOrjlocol - Capital/ Operatrnc I roo 

f-lA/FDOr/Local I - I <:ap!ut I Opemtrnc I TOO 

FDOT;Locat ptannrne- ~'Y 2017/18 1='0/ Pt/CSY I $1.250,000 
Opcmlrn(! 

FOOT/FTA/localjPrrvate Study I TOD 
PO/PE/CST 

Opcrt~tin(! 

FTA/Locav Prrvalo - Study roo 
PD/ PE/CST 

Opcrahn(! 
FTA/Local/ Pnwue - !lt uOy I lf.U) 

PO/PE/CST 
Dpemtrnr. 

FI'AfFOOT/Local - swctv 
I 1-500.00C 

PC/CST $15.000,00C 

I"LX.H/LOCtJI I - ~l)lltll / Opennmg I 180 

FTI\IFDOT/Local I - I C2ipH81 fOf' Venrcle!i I $51.500.00C 

FTI\/FOOT/Lnca! I - I C&o•tol/ Onorrrtrnc U.GOO.OOO 

Draft: 02/13/20:i.9 



00 
-.J 

Pr"ess1mon~ 

Glenn 
Prtss•mone 

A$SC 

RS&H 
Efl£fJ'h!ettl"'g 

SEta 

SEIR ' I 

PEtR 

PEIR I 

I PEIR. I 
h~~"a1u:.tton 

Mar·20 I rv 2019 $1 SM 
FV 1020 $1OM 
FY 2021 SG 

FV 2Qll SIS 1M 

Oct-19 ~y 2022 I $133M 

Jul-19 I F\" 2020 I $S7 OM 

NJI 

I 
- I 

FV :!0~1) 

FV lp1l 

Not rund~d 

h Not Funded II 

I Nil I FV 2022 I $29 SM I fV 2023 I $167 OM 

FOOT OS 

rrr 

c~x 

0;JtePrmtrc l: l/17/2019 


